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IND I A 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the members of Muthoottu Mini 
Financiers Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial 
Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial 

statements of Muthoottu Mini Financiers 

Limited("the Company") which comprise the 

Balance Sheet as at March 31 2025 the 
' ' 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), and the Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash 

Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 

financial statement including a summary of 

the Material accounting policy information 

and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 

give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair 

view in conformity with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under 

section 133 of the Act read with Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 

as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, of the 

state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 

2025, its profit including other comprehensive 
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income, changes in equity and its cash flows 

for the year ended on that date 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Financial 

Statements in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of our report. We 

are independent of the company in accordance 

with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 

together with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the 

Companies Act 2013 and the Rules made 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide abasis for our opinion on the Financial 
Statement. 

Key audit matter 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in 

our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the Ind AS 

financial statements of the current year. These 

matters were addressed in the context of our 

audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 

and we do not provide a separate opinion on 

these matters. We have determined the 

matters described below to be the key audit 

matters to be communicated in our report. 

Branch Office: IIlrd Floor, "Kolliyil Arcade", Kavilkadavu, 
Phone: (Off). 0480- 4050003. Mob: 9847574425. 
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SI.No 

1 
Key Audit Matter 

Expected credit loss on loans 

and advance 

The estimation of ECL on 

financial instruments involves 

significant judgments and 

estimates. As part of our risk 

assessment, we determined that 

the allowance for ECL on Loans 

Assets has a high degree of 

estimation of uncertainty, with a 

potential range of reasonable 

outcomes for the financial 

statements. 

The elements of estimating ECL 

which involved increased level of 

audit focus are the following: 

Data Inputs: The application of 

ECL model requires several data 

inputs 
Model Estimations: Inherently 

judgment models used for the 

estimation of probabilities of 

Default (PD), Loss given default 

(LGD) and Exposure at Default 

(EAD). The PD and LGD are the 

key drivers of the estimation of 

ECL. 
Qualitative and quantitative 

factors used in staging the loan 

assets measured at amortized 

cost. 
Ind AS I 09 requires the entity to 

measure the ECL on an unbiased 

forward looking basis reflecting a . 
range of future economic 

conditions. The management 

measure the ECL considering the 

historical trends as well as 

considering macro-economic 

emerging trends. 

MOHANDAS & ASSOCIATES 

Auditor Response 

We performed the following audit procedures: 

Testing the design and effectiveness of internal ~ontrols 

over the following: 

Key controls over the completeness and accuracy of key 

inputs, data and assumptions into the Ind AS 109 

impairment models. 

Key controls over the application of the staging crite~a 

consistent with the definition applied in accordance With 

the policy approved by the board of directors including 

the appropriateness of the qualitative factors 

Management control over authorization and calculation 

of post model adjustments and management overlays to 

the output of the ECL model 

Also, for a sample of ECL allowance on loan ~sets 

tested in respect of Key Inputs, data and assumptions 

impacting ECL calculations to assess the completeness, 

accuracy and relevance of data, Reasonableness and 

weights. 
We tested the mathematical accuracy of ECL 

calculations using the same inputs used by the company. 

Testing management's controls on compliance with 

disclosures to confirm the compliance with the relevant 

provisions of Ind AS I 09 and the RBI directions. 

Evaluating the changes and updations during the year 

whether tho~e changes and updates are appropriate or 

not. 
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Information Technology 

Systems and controls 

SI.No Key Audit Matter Auditor RespontiiARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

The company's Key financial 

accounting and reporting 

process are highly dependent on 

the automated controls over the 

companies IT system, such that 

there exists a risk that gaps in 

the IT general control 

environment could result in a 

misstatement of the financial 

accounting and reporting 

records. Accordingly, we have 

considered user access 

management, segregation of 
duties and controls over system 
changeover of key financial 

accounting and reporting 

systems as a key audit matter. 

Information Other Than Financial 
Statements and Auditors Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is 

responsiblefor other infonnation. The other 

information comprises of information 

included in the Company's Annual Report, 

but does not include the Financial Statements 

and our report thereon. 

Our Opinion on the Financial Statements 

does not cover the other infonnation and we 

do not express any f onn of assurance. 

In connection with our audit on the Financial 

Statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information made available and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistentwith the 

Financial Statements or our knowledge 

obtainedin the audit or otherwise appears to 

be materially misstated. 

We performed the following audit procedures: 

Tested IT key controls over financial accounting and 

reporting system including access mechanism and 

processing of reports. 

Obtained management evaluation of access rights 

granted to applications relevant to financial accounting 

and reporting systems and tested resolution of a sample 

expectations. 
Evaluate the design and operating effectiveness of 

automated controls critical to financial accounting and 

reporting on random basis 

Considering the reports issued by the professional 

consultants with respect to IS Audit and IT Infrastructure. 

If based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement 

of this other information, we are required to 

report that fact, we have nothing to report in 

this regard. 

Managements Responsibility for the 
Financial Statements 

The company's Board of Directors is 

responsible for the matters stated in Section 

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("The 

Act") with respectto preparation of these 

Financial Statements that give a true and fair 

view of the financial position, financial 

performance, changes 

in equity and cash flows of the Company 

i~ accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standard (Ind AS) prescribed under section 

133 of the Act. This resp 

, l 
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. includes _maintenance of adequate accounting 
•• • records tn accordance with the provisions 

of the Act for safeguarding of the asset of 
_the company and for preventing and 
det~ting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate 
acco~nting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are. reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records , relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statement that 
give. a true and fair view and are free· from 
mat~rial misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the Financial Statements· the 
' . , 

m~agement is r~sponsible for assessing the 
Company.' s ability to continue as a going 
concern, . disclosing, as applicable, matters 
. rela~ng to going cc;mcern and using the going 
conc~rn. . basis for .· accounting ·unless 
·management ·either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations,. or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for 
overseeing the Company's financial reporting . 
process. 

·Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements. 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the Ind AS 
Financial Statements as a whole are free 
from _material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud .or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
• that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detecta 
material . misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise _from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
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expected to influence the economic decisions 
of the users taken on the • basis of these 
Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with 
standards on auditing, we exercise 
professional judgment and professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

a) Identify and assess· the risks of material 
misstatement of the Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and 
~erf orm audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud 1s 
higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

b) Obtain an understanding of the internal 
control relevantto the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section l 43(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act 2013, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial 
controls systems in place . and operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. 

d) Conclude on the appropri~teness of the 
management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and based on· the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or 
~onditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to th so~ 

disclosures in the financial statem " or ·if \ 
... ' u, • THRtSSUR-1 • 
i ~ 
~ ~ ,,.~ ~' 
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such. disclosures are inadequate to mod·f . . , I y 
our op1ruon. Our conclusions are based on the 

auditevidence obtained up to the date of the 

auditor's report. However future events or 

~nditions may cause the company to cease to 
. continue as a going concern. • ' 

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure 

and content of the financial statements 
. ' 
including· the disclosures, and whether the 

financial s~tement represents the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that 

. _achieves fair presentation: 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements 

in the· standalone financial statements. that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it 

pr<?bable that the economic ·decisions of a 

reas~nably • knowledgeable user of the 

stand~one financial ·statements may be 

·influenced. • We consider • quantitative 

mat~riality and qualitative factors in (i) • 

planning the scope of o~ audit work and in 

evaluating the results_ of our work; and· (ii) to 

evaluate the effect of any identified 

·misstatements in the standalone financial 

stat~ments. 

We communicate with those charged with • 

governance regarding, among· other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit· • findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that 

we identify during our audit. 

We . also provide those charged . with 

governance with a statement that we have 

complied. with relevant ethical requiremen~s 

regarding independence, and to communicate 

with them all relationships and other matters 

that· may. reasonably be thought to bear on 

our·. independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those 

charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the 

• audit of the standalone financial statements of 
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the current period and are therefore the key 

audit matters. We describe these matters in 

our auditor's report unless law or regulation 

p·recludes public disclosure about the matter 

or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we . 

determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's 

Report) Order, 2020 ("the order"), issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of 

sub-section (11) • of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 

"Annexure 1" to this repo~ a statement on the 

matters specified in Paragraph 3 and 4 of the 

Order,to the extent appl_icable .. 

2. As required. by the Non-Banking Financial· 

Companfos Auditor·'s Report (Reserve Bank) 

Direction, 2016, issued by the Reserve Bank 

of India in exercise of the powers conferred 

by sub-section (IA) of Section 45MA of the 

Reserve Bankof India Act, 1934, we give in 

the "Annexure 2", an additional Audit Report. 

addressed to the Board • of Directors 

containing our statements on the matters 

specified therein. 

3. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we 
report that: 

a. We have sought and ·obtained all the 

information and explanations which to the 

best of our. knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b. In our opinion, proper books _of account as • 

required by law have been kept by the 

company so far as it· appears from our 

examination of those books· • ' . 

c. No r~port on accounts of any 
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offices audited under sub section 8 of section 
1 143 by any person has been received by us 

/ and therefore no comments need to be made 
on the matter. 

d. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and 
loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the statement of changes in equity 
and the statement of cash flows dealt with by 
this report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

e. In our opm1on, the aforesaid financial 
statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended. 

f. On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on March 31, 
2025 and taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors 1s 
disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from 
being appointed as a director in terms of 
section 164 (2) of the Act. 

g. In our opinion there are no qualifications, 
reservations or adverse remarks relating to the 
maintenance of accounts and other matters 
connected therewith. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be 
included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 

of the Act. 

i. With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
thecompany and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our Report in 
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"Annexure 3" 

j. With respect to the matters to be included in 
the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rule, 2014, as amended, in our 
opinion and to the best of ourinformation and 
according to explanations given to us: 

i. The company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position 
(refer note no 13 in the accompanying 
notes to the Financial Statements ) 

ii. The company does not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any foreseeable losses. 

iii. According to the information provided, an 
amount of 8.09 Lakhs being unclaimed 
matured debentures has been transferred to 
Investor Education & Protection Fund on 
31.03.2025. According to the information 
provided, there are no other amounts, 
required to be transferred by the company 
to the Investor Education & .Protection 
Fund as on 31.03.2025. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested ( either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entity 
("Intermediaries"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
securi e on behalf of the 
Ultim s; 

~ 
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(b) The Management has represented, that, 

to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either 

individually or in the aggregate) have been 

received by the Company from any person 

or entity, including foreign entity 

("Funding Parties"), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Company 

shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 

or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have 

been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 

has come to our notice that has caused us 

to· believe that the representations under 

sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1 l(e), as 

provided under (a) and (b) above, contain 

any material misstatement. 

v. The company has not declared or paid any 

dividend during the year. 

Thrissur 

Dated May 21st, 2025 
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vi. Based on our examination which included 

test checks, the company have used an 

. accounting software for maintaining its 

books of account for the financial year 

ended 3 pt March 2025. which has a 

feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 

facility and the same has operated 

throughout the year for all relevant 

transactions recorded in the software. 

Further, during the course of our audit we 

did not come across any instance of audit 

trail feature being tampered with and 

management has represented that the audit 

trail feature cannot be disabled. Company 

has preserved the Audit trail as per the 

statutory requirements for records 

retention. 

For MOHANDAS AND ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 0 

.., -
Mohandas Anche 

Partner 
Membership No.036726 

• UDIN: :l50.2G=(2GBMHUHUqoqz 



- -
MOHANDAS & ASSOCIATES 

Continuation sheet 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

The Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the h~ading- "Report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements" of the Our Report of even date to the members ofMuthoottu Mint·· 
Financiers Limited on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and 
explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that: 

i) a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment; 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets; 

b) According to the information and explanation provided by the Management, the 
Company has a regular programme for the verification of its Property, Plan~ and 
equipment In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable 
having regard to the size and nature of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
Pursuant to such programme, a portion of such fixed assets has been physically 
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification 

c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties ( other than properties where the 
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company; 

d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of 
use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year; 

e) No proceedings have been initiated or pe_nding against the company under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 ( 45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder; 

ii) a) The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company engaged in the business of 
providing loans and does not hold any type of physical inventories. Therefore, the 
provisions of paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are 
not applicable to the Company; 

b) During the year, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 
rupees five crore, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets including receivables. The statements filed by the company 
with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account 
of the Company; • 
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a) The Company is a Non- Banking Financial Company engaged in the principal business 

of providing loans. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(iii)( a) of the Companies 

(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company; 

b) 

c) 

The terms and conditions of all the loans and advances granted by the co~pany 

during the year are not prejudicial to the company's interest; 

In our opinion and a~cording to the information and explanations given to us the 

company, in respect of Micro finance and term loans, the schedule of repayment of 

principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. The repayments or receipts are 

regular except in 8429 loans, outstanding amounting to Rs. 3517.95 Lakhs, against 

which appropriate provision has been made. 

d) Out of the total loans and advances there are advances which are overdue for more 

than 90 days amounting to Rs. 3517.95 Lakhs, against which appropriate provision 

has· been made. The company has taken necessary steps for the recovery of principal 

e) 

f) 

and interest The details are given in the bel~w table. 
~inlakhs 

Type of No of Loans ·principal Overdue Remarks 

Loan 
Gold Loan 2398 1897.81 Since it's a NBFC their 

principal business is to 
give loans. The loans for 
which overdue for more 
than 90 days are treated 
as irregular and these 

Micro 6030 1528.21 cases are dassified as 

finance 
NPA as per RBI IRACP 
norms. The income 
recognition of the above 
has been done as per RBI 
IRACP norms. 

Loan 1 91.93 

against 
property 

TOTAL 8429 3517.95 

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company engaged in the principal business 

of providing loans. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3 (iii) ( e) of the Companies 

(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company; 

The company has granted loans and advances in the nature of Gold Loans which are 

repayable on demand and the principal outstanding as on 31.03.2025 is Rs. 

3,60,235.36 lakhs which constitute 91 % of total loans outstanding. The company has 

not gra~ted any loans repayable on demand to the promoters or related parties \1-C;, & Ass 

defined m clause 7 6 of section 2 of Companies Act,2 O 13. "t-~ 
0◊ 

~ • ~ 
~ f/J 
• THRISSUR-1 • 
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~~ ~~ 
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iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has not given any loans, made any investments, provided any guarantees, and given any 

security to which the provision of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act are applicable. 

v) The Company has not accepted any Deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 

from the public. Therefore the Directives issued by the Reserve Bank Of India and the 

provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Rules framed there under are not applicable to the Company. The Company has not 

received any order from the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or 

Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal in this regard; 

vi) Being a Non-Banking Finance Company, maintenance of cost records has not been specified 

by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013; 

vii) a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident 

Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Goods and 

Service Tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other 

statutory dues with the appropriate authorities wherever applicable to it There are 

no arrears of statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a 

period of more than six months from the date on which they became payable; 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 

Company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty 

of customs, duty of excise and value added tax which have not been deposited on 

account of any dispute, except the amounts disclosed below : 

SI. Name of Nature of Tax Tax Period to Forum where 

No the Dues Demand paid which the dispute is 
statute (In (In amount 

lakhs) lakhs) relates pending 

1 Income Income Tax 68.58 51.65 AY 2010- Commissioner of 

Tax Act, demands 11 Income-tax 
1961 (Appeals), Kochi 

2 Income Income Tax 227.45 - AY 2017- Honorable High 

Tax Act, demands 18 court of Kerala 
1961 

Total 296.03 51.65 I 

viii) There are no transactions which were not recorded in the books of account which have 

been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of1961); 

ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, 

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings 0 

repayment of interest thereon to any lender. 
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(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 

company is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
other lender. • 

( c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the term 

loan were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

( d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 

company has not utilized the funds raised on short term basis for long term purposes 

( e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 

company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet 

the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 

company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 

subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money 

raised by way of further public offer of debt instruments obtained have been applied 

by the Company during the year for the purpose for which they have been raised. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 

convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 

xi) ( a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were 45 fraud case 

in respect of spurious gold pledged with the company in 45 branches amounting to 

Rs.439.92 lakhs on which 222.85 Lakhs recovered during the year and 100% 

provision has been made for the balance outstanding. During the year under audit, no 

fraud by the company has been noticed or reported. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed 

by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014 with the Central Government; 

( c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the 

Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our 

audit procedures. • 

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the 

Company; 

xiii) . According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 

of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 

Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details of such transactions have 

been disclosed in the Notes the financial statements of the Company as required by the 

applicable Ind AS 

xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and n 

of its business; ~ 

-
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(b) The reports of the internal auditors for the period under audit were considered by 

us on a random basis, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit 

procedures in accordance with the guidance provided in SA 610 "Using the work of 
Internal Auditors". 

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions 

with the directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the 

order is not applicable to the Company. 

xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has obtained the required 

registration under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(b) The company has conducted Non-Banking Financial activities with a valid Certificate 

of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank oflndia as per the Reserve Bank oflndia 
Act, 1934. 

( c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 

made by the Reserve Bank of India. 
( d) There are no CI Cs as part of the Group to which the company belongs 

xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 

of the records of the Company, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial 

year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly 

this clause is not applicable/ paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable 

xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 

statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the 

opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company 

is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they 

fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date; 

xx) a) In respect of other than ongoing projects,· the company transferred to the Fund 

specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with second 

proviso to Section 135(5) of said Act; 
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b) In respect of ongoing projects, the company does not have any unspent amount under 

sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, to be transferred to speciaJ 

account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said 

Act; 

xxi) Since this is a standaJone financial statement Paragraph 3 (xxi) is not applicable. 

Thrissur 
Dated May 21st 2025 

For MOHANDAS AND ASSOCIATES 
• Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 00 

Mohandas Anche 
[Partner] •• 

Membership No.036726 
UDIN: 26D86=f268MHUHUtf()q2 
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ANNEXURE2 

TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited, 

We have audited the Balance Sheet of Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited for the year ended 

as on March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive 

Income), Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then 

ended annexed thereto and issued our audit opinion dated 21st May 2025 thereon. These 

financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility 

was to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Our audit was 

conducted in the manner specified in the audit report. As required by the Non-Banking 

Financial Companies Auditors' Report (Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016, and according to the 

information and explanations given to us which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for this purpose, we report hereunder on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 

of the aforesaid directions; 

i. The company is engaged in the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution and it has 

obtained the certificate of registration as provided in section 45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934. 

ii. The Company is entitled to continue to hold the Certificate of Registration in terms of the 

Asset/ Income pattern as on March 31, 2025 

iii. The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a resolution for non-acceptance of public 

deposit. 

iv. The Company has not accepted any public deposit during the period under review. 

v. According to the information ~d explanation given to us, the Company has complied with the 

prudential norms on Income Recognition, Indian Accounting Standards, Asset Classification, 

Provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as specified in the direction issued by the Reserve 

Bank of India in terms of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company -

Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and deposit taking Company (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2016. 

vi. The capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the return submitted to RBI in terms of Master 

Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non- deposit taking 

Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016, has been correctly 

arrived and such ratio is in compliance with the minimum CRAR as prescribed by the Reserve 

Bank of India. 

--
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vii. The Company ha fi • h d . 
• . . s umis e to RBI the annual statement of Capital Fund, risk assets and nsk 

assets ratio Within the stipulated period. 

viii. The Company has not been classified as NBFC-MFI for the year ended March 3 I, 2025 

ix. We have no responsibility to update this report for ev~nts and circumstances occurring after 
the date of our audit opinion mentioned in paragraph I. 

The report has been issued pursuant to the Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditors' Report 
(Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016 and is issued to the Board of Directors of the Company as 
required by Paragraph 2 of such directions and should not be used for any other purpose. 

Thrissur 
Dated May 21, 2025 

For MOHANDAS AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 00,/...-~ 
~._s 

.;.\; 

Mohandas Anc 
Partner 

Membership No. 036726 
UDIN: 2602G:f2.G Btvf HUH l]Cf()q2 
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ANNEXURE3 

TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Annexure 3 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial Statements 

of Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial 

Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

("the Act") (Ref erred to in paragraph 3(i) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements 'section of our report of even date) 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Muthoottu Mini 

Financiers Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the guidance note issued by the ICAI. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of the· internal controls stated in the guidance 

note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 

to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 

and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 

of reliable financial information, as required under the Gompanies Act, 2013. 

Auditors Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We have conducted our audit in accordance with the 

guidance note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting ( the "Guidance 

Note") and the standards on auditing ("the Standards") issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
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pre~crib~d under Section 143(10) of the Companie•s Act, 20 I 3, to the extent applicable to an 

audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and Guidance Note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects._ 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporti~g included obtaining an understanding 

of the internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that material 

weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 

controls based on assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 

including the assessment of the risk of material misstatements of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

a reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

financial statements for external purposes in accordan~e with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 

policies and procedures that 

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and the dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

11. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made in accordance with authorization of 

the management and directors of the Company; and 

111. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements. 

Inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting 

~ecau~e of the i~h~~ent limitati~n of ~nternal financial controls over financial reporting, 

mcludmg the poss1b1hty of collus1on or improper management override of controls • 

misstatements due to fraud or error may occur and not be detected. Also proiecti ' ~ an°,,_ 
' 'J ~ "'"" 
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evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 

to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate • 

because of the changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or 

procedures may deteriorate. 

Thrissur 

Dated May 21, 2025 

For MOHANDAS AND ASSOCISTES 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 002116 

~~ 
d 

., ' 

Mohandas Anchery 

Partner 

Membership No.036726 

VDIN: 2.502G:/26Btv1HUHUqoq2 

I ,. 



MUTHOOTTU MINI FINANCIERS LIMITED
CIN: U65910KL1998PLCOlzl'4

Muthoottu Royal Tower, Kaloor, Kochi, Kerala - 682077
BALANCE SHEET

See dccompanying notes to the ftnqncial stqtements

For Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited

ees in Lakhs

As per our report ofeven date attached

For Mohandas
Chartered Accountants

11

r (M.No
UDIN: 250367268MHUHU9092

ACS

fitb I
Mathew Mu thoottu (DlNr 01786534) Nizzy Mathew (DINr01680739)

Whole-time Director
M

Partneanaging Director

P.E.Mathai
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Kochi
Date: May 27,2025

Ann ary

(

Particulars
Note No.

As at March 31st,
2025 (Audited)

As at March 31, 2024
(Audited)

4,10,67 6.97
2,590.62
1,885.49

2,A21.53

4,717.55
46,944.94

20,397.34
363.33

1,S48.92

10,269.47
44,457.57

3,49,AO7.61-

992.14
2,026.45

215.09
19,923.76

222.96
7,043.07

4,95,986.69 +,37,55?.47

1,46522.60
2,30,857.88

34,501.92
2,r99.36

743.20
302.26
742.09

25,032.54
55,004.84

7,36,226.23
1,97,229.90

30,664.31
1,694.t7

547.62

57 6.42

25,032.54
45,551.88

5

()

7

12

13

2

3

4

1.1

7.2

8

9

10

11

74
15

4,95,946.69 4,37,557.47

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balance other than (a) above

Receivables
(l) Trade receivables
(ll) Other receivables

Loans
Investments
Other financial assets

Non-financial Assets
lnventories
Current tax assets (Net)
Deferred tax assets INet)
Property, Plant and Equipment
Other intangible assets

Other non-hnancial assets

2 Non-fiDancialLiabilities
a) Provisions
bJ Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
c) Othernon-financialliabilities

Total Liabilities and Equity

Total Assets

I. ASSETS

1

a)
b)

c)

d)
el
fl

2
a)

bl
c)
dl
e)

0

3 EQUITY
a) Equity share capital
bl Other equity

2L1

ChiefFinanc I Officer
KS

Secretary

II. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIf,S

1 FinancialLiabilities
a) Debt Securities
bl Borrowings [other than debt securitiesJ

c) Subordinatediiabilities
d) Other financial liabilities

.-



MUTHOOTTU MINI FINANCIERS LIMITED
CIN: U65910KL1998P1CO12154

Muthoottu Royal Tower, Kaloor, Kochi, Kerala - 682017
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

KU

Particulars
Period ended March
31.2025 fAuditedl

Period ended March
31,2024 (Audited)

(0
(i0
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

{vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Revenue hom operations
lnterestincome
other income on lo3ns
Dividend incomc
Rental income
Fees and Commission income

Net gain on derecognition of financial insEuments under
amortised cost cat€gory
Netgain on fairvalue changcs

Sales ofservices

Total R€venue from operations

other lncome

Total Income (l + If)

Expenses
Finance costs
Net loss on fair value changes
lmpairment on ffnancial ifftruments
Employee benefi ts expenses

Deprcciation, amortization and impairment
Otherexpenses

0)

OD

t[r)

ti)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

0\r

0,
(vD

Total Exp€nses (lv)

Profitbefore rax (III- tv)

Tax Expense:

[1) Currenttax
(2) Earlieryears adjustments
(3) Deferred tar

MD
A)

Pmfit for the year (V- VD

Other Compr€henslve Incom€
(i) Items thatwill notb€ re€lassified to profitorloss
- Remeasurement ofdefirted benefit plans
- Fair value changes on equity instruments tlrough other
comprehensivc income
(ii) lncometaxrclatingtoitemsthatwillnotbe
reclassified to profit or loss

subtot l (A)
B)

(vnD

0x)

[i] ltemsthat wiU be reclassiffed to profitorloss
(ii) Incom€ tax relatingto items thatwillbe reclassified to
profit or loss
subtotal (B)

Other Comprehensive Income (A + B) (VtU

Total compr€h.nsive IncoDe for the year (VII+VIIo

Eamirgs per equity share
(Face value or Rs. 100/- each)
Basic (Rs.)
Diluted tRs.l

16
17

18

79

20

2t
18

22

23
24
25

26
z6

77.698.7r
7.164.96

29.14
160.56
388.13

1,598.49

5.58

65,317.38
1,030.89

22.67
168.66
249.09

9.13

23.03

41,o4s.61 66,a2O.aS

468.86 363.06

81,S14.53 67,183.91

39,754.55

1,434.37
16,259.02

1,160.58
9,934.19

34,530.94

694.71

12,458.58
1,038.40
7,405.52

64,542.7 7 56,128.1s

12,971.42 11,05s.76

3,O44_70

505.47

3,25A.12

14.50

9,417.63 7,743.14

47.20

(11.881

127.41)

9.58

35.32 (17.83)

35.32 t17.83)

37.62
37.62

7,7 65-31

3l.19
3l.19

in Lakhs

see accompanying notes to the financial statemenLs

For Muthoottu Mini Financlers Llmlted

As per our report ofcven date attached

For Moh

M uthoottu (DIN: 01786S34)

/Ii L-
Nizzy Mathew (DIN:0164o739)

Whole-time Director

q.n

Anch€ry
anaging Di No.036726)

UDIN:25{l:t672 [,tHU t'9092

KSP

Place: Kochi
Dat€t ay21,2O2S

chief Co Secr€tary

9,452.97

chief Executiv; officer



CASH FLOWSTATEMENT
CtN: U5s910KL1998PLCo1z1s4

Muthoottu Royal Tower, Kaloor, Xochi, K€rala - 682017
CASH FLOW STATf,Mf,NT

Period ended March 31,2025
(Audit€d'l

Period ended March 31s12024
tAudited)

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities

Impairment on,inancial instruments
Net (gain)/loss on fairvalue chanses
Net IProfit) / Loss on Sale ofasse.s

Depr€ciation, amorliza(ion and impairment
Income fiom Non-Operating Business

- Disidend Income
Operating Profit / (Loss) b€fore working capita I

Other fin,n.i,l assets

Othernon financial assets

Sank Balance other than 'Cash and cash

Other fi nancial liabilities
Other non financial liahilities
Cash Generated froln operations

Net Cash Flow hom Operatiry Adir4ty

B. Cash Flow fioln lnv€stmentActivlties

Purchase of Fixed Ass€ts

N€t Cash tlow from I nvestm€ht Activity

c. Cash tlow from Financing Activity
Proceeds from,ssue ofequity share cap,lal
(including share premium)
Netincr€ase/(Decrease) in Borrowings(other
than debtsecurities)
Net increase/(D€crease) in Subdebt
Net incrcase/(D€crease) in Debt Securities
Net cash Flow trom FinancingAdivity

Net lncreas€/(D€crers€ )in Cash & Cash

Equivalents(A+B+C)
0pening Balance ofCash &Cash Equivalents

1,434.37
-1,598.49

2.53

39,754.55
1,160.58

-150_56

-29.14

'12,971.42

40,558.68

694.7 |
-9.13

6.80
34,530.94

1,038.40

-764.66
-22.67

11,055.75

36,05679

.62,289.77

127.01
-505-85

2,127.37

248.78
505.18
205.27

53,530.50

63,836.75

-26,O44.44
-2.44

340.98
26.22

13,358.86

44.47
45,48

270.54

47,tt2.55

'38,819.01
-10,306.25

3,670.28
-+0,24+.57

4,293.s4
,3,668.6S

-34,48{.56
.54,261.10 -29,A59.67

29.14
160.56

74.92
1,787.42

22.67
164.66

37 _25

L749.O7
-1,582.80 -t,szo.20

39,627.9e
3,837.61

10,a26.39

300.00

38,564.55
6,364.02

-7,592.66
54,291.94 37,635.9r

-1,551.92

10,269-47

6,255-7 5

4,013.72

Closing Balance ofcash &Cash Equivalents 8,7 77.55 to,269.47

Components ofCash and Cash EquiEl€nts
Current Account wilh Banks

Cash in Hand

7,A42.70
220.t1
654.74

5,915.39
2,535.42
1,818.66

8,717.55 1o,269.47

in Lakhs

See accompanfing notes to ,he frnancial statenenL.

For Murhoottr, Mini Financiers Limited

As perour repod ofeven date attached

l,Iuthoottu I IN:01786534)
Director

U{L /L-
Nizzy Mathew [DINr01680739)

whole-time Director
Mohandas Anrhery

Partner (M.No.036726)
lN: 250367268MHUHU9092

For Mohandas & AssgilE-\.**.*o".-"""t"[ffi
lirt. /'\r\-' : /

P.[.Mathai
Chief Executive Ofricer

Placer Kochi
Date: May 21,2025

ChiefFinancia fficer C ry



MUTHOOTTU MIT{I FITANCIERS LIMITED
Muthoottu Royal Tower, Kaloor, Kochi, Kerala -5a2O17

STATIMET{TOF CHANCES IN EQUITY
a. Equity Share Capital
Equtyshares ofRs.100/-each issued, su bscnbed and tullypaid

es in Lakhs

2025 ( udited)
As at March 31,2024

(Audited)
A5 at the beginningoftlle period 25,032.54 24,952.54
Changes in Equty Share Capital due to prior period items
R€stated balance at the beginning ofthe current reporting period 25,032.54 24.952_54

Changes in equity share capital during the current year 80_00

Balance at the end ofclrrrent reportins period 25,032.54 25,032.54

b. Other E

oottu (DlN:01786534)
anaging Director

P.E.Mathai
ChiefExecutive Of6cer

See occomponyitg nobs to the frnonciol stotemenLT

tor Muthoottu Mini Finatrciers Limited

As per our report ofeven

Chartered Accourtan

in Lakhs

1

JL /lI-
Nizzy Matllew (DlN:01680739)

Whole"time Direcror

*hM"ffi

MohandasAnchery
Partier IM.No.035726)

llDlN: 2SO36726BMHtlHtl9O92

xs

Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive income
Revaluatio Retained

Earnings
Equityillstruments

through Other
comprehensive

Otherltems
ofOther

compreheDsi

(R€m€asure

defiDed
betrefit
platrs)

Total

Particulars

Special Reserv€
Fund(u/s 4s lc

ofRBIAct,
1934)

Securities
Premium

lmpairmen Deb€ntur

Redempti

37,566.57

r,553.06

220.OO

7,765.3r

'1,553.07

4S,S51.87
7,924.63

9,452.97

-1,890.59

55,004.84

350.00

350.00

350.00

2r,747,47

7,743.14

-1,553.07

27,977.94

9,477.65

-1,890.59

-34.04

35,470.96

-a93.75

-211.5a

-176.26

17.83

3S-32

7,650,35

1,553.06

9,203.41
1,890.59

11,094.00

7,444.15

4,064.15

8,064.15

224_00

167.95

167,95
34.04

2o1.99

Aalance as at March 31, 2 023

Transfer from Retained eamings
Secunties premium on share
options exercised during the
yeat
Amounttransferred
Pront for the period

Transfer to Special Reserve Fund
Transrer from/[to) Debenture
Redempt on Reserve

Transfer to Impaiment Reserue

Balance as at March 31,2024
Transfer lrom Retained earnings

Securines premium on share
options exercised during rhe

Amount transferred
Pront for the period

Transfer to Special Reserve Fund

Transrer rrom/(to) Debenture
Redemphon Reserve

Transfer to lmpairment Resewe

Balance as at March 31,202S

It^te: M^y 21,2025

ACS



Notes to financial statements

Note 1.1: Cash and cash uivalents

Note 1.2: Bank balance other than cash and cash uivalents

Note 1.3 : Additional details ofFixed De osits

Particulars As at March 31st,
2025 (Audited)

As at March 31,
2024 (Audited)

Cash on hand
Balances with Banks
- in current accounts
- in fixed deposit (maturing within a period of

three months)

654.7 4

7 ,842.7 0

220.77

1, B 18.6 6

5,915.39
2,535.42

Total 4,7t7.s5 to,269.47

Particulars As at March 31st,
202 5 (Audited)

As at March 31,
2024 (Audited)

46,984.94 44,857.57Fixed deposits with bank (maturing after period of
three months)

46,984.94 44,A57 .57Total

As at March 31st,
2025 (Audited)

As at March 31,
2024 fAudited)

Particulars

42,559.46
1.,246.17
1,052.00
2,535.36

45,720.80
7,264.74

220.-tl

Fixed deposits given as security for borrowings
Fixed deposits given as security for guarantees
Fixed deposits held for redemption of debentures
Free held fixed deposits

47,205.05 47,392.99Total

/-i---\

\ffiIL
\--:i/



Notes to financial statements

Note 2: Loans

Particulars

As at March 31st, 20ZS (Audited)

Amortised
Cost

At Fair value

Total
Through Other

Comprehensive
Income

Through
profit or

loss

Designated at
fair value

through profit
or loss

(A)
il Loans repayable on demand
ii) Term loans
iii) Leasing
iv) Factoring
vl Others
Total (A) - Gross
Less: lmpairment loss allowance

4,14,160.29

4,14,160.29
3,483.32

4,14,760.29

4,44,160,29
3,443.32

Total (A) - Net +,10,676.97 4,10,67 6.97
(B)
l) Secured by tatrgible assets
Gold Loan
Loan Against Property

3,81,256.08
235.38

3,81,2S5.08
235.38

Total (l) - Gross
Less: lmpairment loss allowance

3,47,49a.46
2,724_137

3,81,491,+6
2,724.47

Total fl) - Net 3,79,366.59 3,79,366.59
ll) Covered by Bank /
Government Guarantees
Total (ll) - Net

llll Unsecured
Microfinance 32,668.83 32,664.43

Total (tII) - Gross
Less: lmpairment loss allowance

32,664.43 32,664.43
1,358.45 1,358.45

Total fIIl) - Net 31,310.38 31,310.34
Total fBl tl+ll+llll - Net 4,10,67 6.97 4,1o,676.97
(C) (l) Loans in India
i) Public Sector
ii) Others
(C) (ll) Loans outside India

4,14,160.29 4,14,L60_29

Total fcl - Gross 4,74,160.29 4,14,160.29
Less: Impairment loss allowance 3,443.32 3,443.32

Total [Cl- Net 4,1o,676.97 4,70,676.97

in Lakhs

As at March 31st, 2024 tAuditedl
At Fai. value

Through Other
Comprehensive

Income

Through
profit or

loss

Designated at
fair value

through profit
or loss

Total
Particulars Amortised

Cost

{A)
i) Loans repayable on demand
iil Term loans
iii) Leasing
iv) Factoring
v) others
Total (A) - Gross
Less: lmpairment loss allowance

3,52,277.57

3,52,277.57
2.469.96

3,52,277.57

3,52,277.57
2,469.96

3,49,407.6LTotal [A) - Net 3,49,4O7.61
(B)
I) secured bytaDgible assets
Gold Loan
Loan Against Property

3,22,221.23
643.23

3,22,221.23
643.23

z<:ii:\\ffi



Notes to financial statements
Total (l) - Gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance

3,22,A64,46
l,757.46

3,22,A64.46
1,157 .A6

Total fl) - Net 3,21,106.60 3,21,1o6.60
II) Covered bv Bank /
Total {ll)'Net
lll) unse(ured
Microfinance 29,413.71 29,413.11

Total (lll) - Gross
Less: Impairment ioss allowance

29,413.11 29,413.71
712.10 flz t0

Total (lll) - Net 24,701-Ol 24,701.O1
Total (a) (l+ll+IIl) - Nct 3,49,4O7.61 3,49,4O7.61
(C) (I) Loans in India
i) Public Sector

ii) Others

fC) (ll) Loans outside India
3,52,277.57 3,52,277.57

Total [C) -Gross 3,52,277.57 3,52,277.57
Less: Impairment loss allowance 2,469.96 2,469.96
Total fC)- Net 3,49,aO7.67 3,49,4O7.67

Itt
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Notes to nnanclal statements 

2.1 Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 

As required by RBI, the Company is obliged to comply with the extant prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset 
Classification and Provisioning (lRACP). ECL computed by the Company as per the policy, laid down under significant 
accounting policies, is higher than the provision as per IRACP norms. 

The Notification RBl/2019-20/170 dated 13 March, 2020, states that a comparison to be made between the provisions 
required under IRACP and impairment allowances made under Ind AS 109 and where the impairment allowance under Ind 
AS 109 is lower than the provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning), the Company shall 
appropriate the difference from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate 'impairment reserve'. 

In FY 2024-2025, Rs. 34.04 lakhs has been appropriated from net profit after tax to 'Impairment Reserve'( Previous year 
2023-2024-Nil), since, the ECL provision computed as per the policy laid down under significant accounting policies is lower 
than the provision as per IRACP norms. 

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to receivables under 
financing activities is, as follows: 

Oustanding 

(Rupees In Lakhs) 
Year ended March 31, 202S 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

Gross carrying amount 3,30,947.53 18,215.73 3,114.32 3,52,277.58 
Assets/increase/(Decrease) in 10,27,015.80 -2,535.13 - 10,24,480.68 Interest accured 
Assets repaid -9,46,402.89 -13,913.22 -1,874.81 -9,62, 190. 92 
Transfer to Stage 1 -8,027.80 -8,027.80 
Transfer to Sta_g_e 2 - 5,522.32 . 5,522.32 
Transfer to Stage 3 - - 2,505.48 2,505.48 
Write off -171.22 -8.78 -227.04 -407.05 
Closing carrying amount 4,03,361.42 7,280.92 3,517.95 4,14,160.29 

(Rupees In Lakhs) 
Year ended March 31, 2024 
Stage 1 Stage2 Stage3 Total 

Gross carrying amount 3,16,459.63 8,418.83 1,399.81 3,26,278.27 

Assets/increase/(Decrease) in 9,33,177.54 2,326.36 - 9,35,503.90 
Assets repaid -9,02,483.66 -6,643.73 -291.33 -9,09,418.72 
Transfer to Sta_g_e 1 -16,138.32 -16,138.32 
Transfer to Stage 2 14,117.11 14,117.11 
Transfer to Stage 3 2,021.21 2,021.21 
Write off -67.65 -2.84 -15.39 -85.87 
Closing carrying amount 3,30,947.53 18,215.73 3,114.32 3,52,277.58 

Reconciliation ofECL Balance 
(Rupees In Lakhs) 

Year ended March 31, 202S 
ECL Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

Gross carrying amount 1,795.35 92.85 581.76 2,469.96 
,,._ ..... ...,~--, ----- ---- --- --· --- 4,430.39 -9.89 - 4,420.50 .J 

Assets repaid -4,100.13 -115.88 -285.56 -4,501.57 
Transfer from Stage 1 -59.27 -59.27 
Transfer to Stage 2 85.91 85.91 
Transfer to Stage 3 828.76 828.76 
Write off -2.56 -0.30 -17.90 -20.77 
Impact of revision of ECL rates -284.90 185.81 272.20 173.12 
Impact of MTM Loss -
Additional Provision . 18.96 67.72 86.68 
Closing carrying amount 1,778.88 257.47 1,446.97 3,483.32 



Notes to ftnanclal statements 

Year ended March 31, 2024 
(Rupees In Lakhs) 

ECL Stage 1 Staae 2 Staae 3 Total 
Gross carrying amount 1,642.32 51.95 185.12 1,879.39 
1'1'-"•"' •• ..,.,_ ..:Jf •••""'• __ ..,._•••Ill,'- ...,...,.,. 4,114.00 9.76 4,123.76 • . 
Assets repaid -3,868.28 -30.91 -43.03 -3,942.22 
Transfer from Stage 1 -91.64 -91.64 
Transfer to Stage 2 62.09 62.09 
Transfer to Stage 3 392.25 392.25 
Write off -1.06 -0.05 -2.25 -3.36 
Impact of revision of ECL rates . . 49.67 49.67 
Impact of MTM Loss . . . . 
Additional Provision . . . . . . 
Closing carrying amount 1,795.35 92.85 581.76 2,469.96 

2.2 MOVEMENT OF PROVISION FOR STANDARD AND NON-PERFORMING ASSETS 

As per the Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Reserve Bank 
Directions, 2016, the Company has created provision for Standard Assets as well as Non-Performing Assets. Details are as per 
the table below:-

(Rupees In Lakhs) 
Particulars 2024-2S 2023-2024 

Provision for Standard Assets· 
Provision at the beginning of the year 1,888.19 1,694.26 
Additional provision made during the year 148.15 193.93 
Provision at the close of the year 2,036.34 1,888.19 

Non-Performing Assets As at 31st March 202S As at 31st March 2024 

Sub-standard Assets 361.96 173.90 
Doubtful Assets (Upto lyear) 463.67 65.11 
Doubtful Assets (1- 3 years) 154.91 24.13 
Doubtful Assets (More than 3 years) 145.39 157.42 
Loss Assets 321.05 161.21 
Total Non-performing Assets 1,446.98 581.77 
Provision for non-performing assets 2024-2S 2023-2024 
Provision at the beginning of the year 581.77 185.13 
Additional provision made during the year 865.21 396.64 
Provision at the close of the year 1,446.98 581.77 

The company is maintaining LTV (Loan to Value) within the maximum prescribed ratio of75% of the securities as per RBI 
Guidelines. 

2 .3 Credit Quality of assets 
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company's internal credit 
rating system and year-end stage classification 

As on 31/03/2025 (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Internal Rating Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Grand Total 
High grade 4,03,361.42 . - 4,03,361.42 
Medium grade . 7,280.92 - 7,280.92 
Low grade - - 3,517.95 3,517.95 

Total 4,03,361.42 7,280.92 3,517.95 4,14,160.29 

As on ·31/03/2024 (Rupees in Lakhs} 
Internal Rating Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Grand Total 
High grade 3,30,947.53 - - 3,30,947.53 
Medium grade - 18,215.73 - 18,215.73 
Low grade - - 3,114.32 3,114.32 
Total 3,30,947.S3 18,215.73 3,114.32 3,52,277.S8 



Notes to financial statements

Note 3: Investments

Less: Allowance for
impairment loss (C)

ees in Lakhs
As at March 31s1,2025 (Audited)

At Fair value

Particulars Amortised
Cost

Through
Other

Comprehen
sive lncome

Through
profit or loss

Designated at
fair value

through profit
or loss

Sub-total
At cost Total

2,590.62 2,590.62 2,590.62

i) Mutual tunds

ii) Government securities

iii) Debt securities

iv) Equity instruments
Subsidiaries
Others

2,590.62 2,590.62 2,590.62Total Gross (A)

i) Investments outside India
ii) lnvestments in India 2,590.62 2,590.62 2,590.62

2,590.62 2,590.62 2,590.62Total Gross (B)

Less: Allowance for
impairment loss (C)

2,590.62 2,590.62 2,590.62Total'NetD=(A)-(C)

As at March 31st, 2024 (Audited)
At Fair value

TotalThrough
profit or loss

Designated at
fair value

through profit
or loss

Suh-total
At costParticulars Amortised

Cost

Through
Other

Comprehen
sive Income

992.74 992.74

t) Mutual tunds

ii) Government securities

iii) Debt securities

iv) Equity instruments
Subsidiaries
Others 992.14

992.14 992.14Total Gross [A) 992.14

992.14 992.14 992,14
i] lnvestments outside lndia
ii) Investments in India

992,74992.14 992.14Total Gross (B)

,.?;J-N
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Notes to linancial statements

Total - NetD = (A) - [c ) 992.1+

3.1 Details ofinvestments are as follows :-

E ut instruments

Note 4: Other financial assets

*Robbery Case
**lndustrial Tribunal-l Hyderabad

in Lakhs

in Lakhs

As at March 31st, 2025
[Audited)

As at March 31, 2024
[Audited)Particulars

Number Amount Number Amount

6,43,597

7,00,369

503
56,27 5

2,57 4.36

2,590.62

3.28
72.94

6,43,591

7,00,369

503
56,27 5

971.40

992.1+

4.94
15.36

Subsidiaries

Quoted

Unquoted

Subtotql

Others

Quoted
Wonderla Holidays Ltd
The South Indian Bank Limited

Unquoted
Cochin International Airport Ltd
Share application money pending allotment

Subtotol

992.14Total 7 ,00,369 2,590.62 7 ,OO,369

RUI

Particulars As at March 31st, 2025
(Audited)

As atMarch 31,2024
(Audited)

Security deposits
Rent Deposit
Security Deposit with NSE, BSE &
CDSL

Security Deposit*
Electricity Deposit
Insurance deposit
Court deposit**
0ther Deposits

Other Receivables
Commission/lncentive Receivable

Third Party
Rent Receivable

7,522.08
34.08

50.00

4.42
0.75

165.77

52.77
48.44

7,77 4.07
30.57

50.00
5.32
2.57
0.75

45.54

77.23
40.46

Total 1,885.49 2,O26.45

ln

s,s
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Notes to financial statements

Note 6: Other Inta ble Assets

Note 6.1 In le assets under develo ment schedule

u ees in Lakhs

Ru ees in Lakhs

Note 7: Other Non-financial assets Ru es in Lakhs

Particulars

Computer
Software

Intangible
assets under
development

Total

87.75
50.92

114.83
1A1.25

134.67 757.41 296.OA
1.96 17 6.AA 77 A.A4

140.63 334.29 474.92

38.53
34.59

38.53
34.59

73.12 73.12
38.4738.47

111.59 111.59

49.22 27.oa 76.30
222.9665.55 157.4L
3 63.3 3

Gross block- at cost
As at March 31, 2023
Additions
Disposals*
As at March 31,2024
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2025

Accumulated amortisation
As at March 31, 2023
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2024
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2025

Net book value:
As at March 31,2023
As at March 31, 2024
As at March 31, 2025 334.2929.04

Amount of CWIP for a period of

More than
3 years

Total

Less than 1 year l-2 years 2-3 years

Intangible assets under development

27.04Proiects in progress 176.44 13 0.3 3

As at March 31st,
2025 (Audited)

As at March 31,
2024 (Audited)

Particulars

800.43
242.64

Balances with government authorities
-CST Receivable

Other Advances/Receivables
974.83
574.09

\544.92 1,O43.O7Total

27.08
13 0.3 3

\{1D-
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Note-s to nnanctal statements 

N I II f>cbt Sca1rttles oe : 
(Rupees In 1,.khs) 

AK at Mardi :lht, 2025 (Audited) 

Al fair wluc Dest11nated al ratr 
PartJnalart 

At amortised cost through proflt or value through Total 

loss proOl or loss 

lnnht S<'Ctlrities in India 
( t) Soou-ed. Prfvatrly Plll<'.'Cd NCO 38,687.22 38,687.22 

(U) Secured, Redeemable NCO Publlc Issue 77,853.33 17,853.33 

(Ill) Unsewred rublic Plal-ed NCO 16,459.42 16,4S9.42 

(iv) Unsecured PrivatE'ly Placed NCO - . 
v) lln!.eeured f.nmmen::i:11 Paper 1-4,642.35 14,642.35 

(vi} Unclaimed Mann-ed Debenture.~ 129.03 129,03 

(vii) Interest accnied on above - . 

'viii) Unamortized expense of 11ubllc Issue -1.248.75 ·l,248.7S 

Total (A) 1,46,522.60 . . 1,46,522.60 

nnl.t s-••rt-lo< in In ll;t I A,1; I!?? ,:n . - I 4,: ,:-,-, ,-n 

Debt s«Urities outside India - . . . 

Total fBl 1,46,522.60 . - 1,46,522.60 

A~ at Mardi J 1, 2024 (Aadltcdl 

PartJculan 
Al fair value Desl1J1ated at fair 

At amortised co,t through pront or value throup Tobi 

loss pro0lorlo55 

Debt sec:urlttc.~ In India 
(I) Secured. Prtvately Placed NCO 15,544.42 lS,S4♦,42 

(11) Secured, Redeemable NCO Public Issue 1,05,372.00 1,0S,37Z.OO 

{iii) Unsecured Public Pl.iced NCO 15,630.08 15,630.08 

(Iv) Uns«ured Prlv.1~ly Pl3tt'd NCO 216.37 216.37 

(iv) Unclaimed Matured De~tures 182.09 182.09 

(v) Interest accrued on above 
(vi) Un.imorti7.ed ex~nse of public issue -718.73 ·718.73 

Total (A) 1,36,226.23 . - 1,36.226.23 

Debt securities in India 1,36,226.23 . - 1,36,226.23 

Debt securities outside India - . . -
Total IDl ' 1,36,226.23 . . 1,36,226.23 

8.1 Secured Redeemable Non-convertJble Debentures - Listed 

The outstmdlng amount of Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Usted Debentures raised through Public Issue stood at 't 

77.853.33 lakhs (Previous Year. , 1.05.372 Jakhs). During the FY 2024-2025. Non- convertible Debentures amounting to '{ 

11,4S9.86 lakhs (~vious year:, NIL) was raised and listed. 

Da.te of M3llffilv SumofTotal lntt!l'l.'l>"t Ral'c 

22-05-2025 3,710.05 9.25% 

01-07-2025 3,684.44 10.50% 

02-07-202S 1.888.99 10.22% 

29-09-2025 3,122.00 10-~0% 

15-11-202S 4,765.63 10.22% 

21-11-2025 3,624.01 10.50% 

17-12-202S 271.42 10.07% 

02-01-2026 6,181.80 9.75% 

12-02-2026 996.67 11.50% 

22-05-2026 9,070.27 9.50% 

1'1-08-2026 3,339.31 10.71% 

18-01-2027 S28.37 9.00% 

18-01-2027 1,261.21 9.40% 

17-03-2027 6,976.61 10.28% 

02-07-2027 3,601.42 10.13% 

31-07-2027 5,064.06 10.28% 

29-10-2027 2,517.66 10.28% 

18-11-2027 3,315.84 9.50% 
18-11-2027 1,008.59 9.75% 
22-J 1-2027 5,747.57 10.00% 

23-12-2027 2,711.38 10.28% 

18·11-2028 3,291.89 10.00% 
18-05-2030 1,174.14 10.50% 

Total 77,853.33 

• 
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ft.2 ~ RC!dttm11ble Privately Pl1ced NCO 

The ComP.,I\Y Md pcivo\tely piked Secured lledeem.-ible Non-conYl'rtible Debentures for ,1 m,,turl1y period up 10 66 monthi 

wllh an oul.St.inJlng amount of '38,<>87.22 lakhs {Pn!vlous yt'.tn , 15,544.42 lakhsl. D11t1n11 the FY 2024· 202S, Se~-u~J 

rnwtd)• f'laa.-d NCO ;imounttng to , 23,600 l~ikhs ( Previon~ ye:ar :, t 4,900.00 IAikhs J w:11 r:al$ed .1n1I listed. 

Oa~ ofMJnlrtlV Sum ot Amount Interest RJtc 

10·11·2025 4926.57 10.00% 

31-12-2025 5,027.17 10.00% 

27.02-2026 5,027.17 10.00% 

25-04-2027 i,S41.37 10.00% 

12-09-2026 2,511.64 9.75% 

06-02-2027 8,639.59 9.75% 

21-03-2028 5,013.70 10.00% 

Total 38,687.22 

8.3 Un,ecured De~ntu~s ·Listed 

The outstJndlng amount of Unsecured Debentures ralS<'d through Public Issue stood Jt ~ J 6,459.42 lakhs {Prc,•lous Ye.ir: 

U56J0.08 lal(hs). During the FY-24-25 and l:Y 23-24 no Unsa-ured Public Placed NCO wa.~ raised. 

Date of Maruritv Sum of Amount . l111'crt-st R11le 

13-03-2026 2,770.94 10.25% 

02-06-2026 2,405.20 10.25% 

15-03-2027 2 592.39 10.41% 

14-02-2028 3,242.80 10.25% 

02-05-2028 2,004.88 10.41% 

15-09-2028 3,443.21 10.41% 

Tota.I 16,459.42 

8.4 Unclaimed Matured Debentures 
The outsunding amoum of llnclaim,~I Matured lxihenn1res as on 3 lsl March 2024 is tl 29.0:l lakh!.. (Previous ye.tr 't 182.09 

Date or Manu1tv Alnount 
2017-J.8 0.52 

2018-19 42.08 

2019-20 6.63 

2020-21 21.97 
2021-22 11.02 

2022-23 i.44 
2023-24 10.33 

2024-25 29.0+ 
Total 129.03 

8.5 UnRCUred Commercial Paper 

The outstanding amount of Unsecured commercial paper stood at f 14,642,35 lakhs (Previous Yea,~ Nil.). During the FY-2◄-25, 
t 14642.35 Lakhs was raised through. L~sue of commercial paper and In FY 23-24 no unsecured commercial paper was ls.~ucd. 

Date orMaturitv Amount Discount Rate 
04-07-2025 4,096.97 10% 
28-07-2025 2 ◄22.53 10% 
22-08-2025 3.368.56 10% 
30-09-2025 4,754.29 11% 

Total 14,642.35 

1, 

I 
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Notes to nna111clal mtemcnts 
Note 9: Borro,iin1s (otber than debt scc:urtttu) 

As at Mardi J 1st, 202S (Audltedl 
At amortised C05t Atfatrnlue Desll"ated at fair TotDI 

PartJculan lhrou,cb profit or value lhroo"" 
loss prontorloss 

(a) Tenn loan 
(() from banks 

Vehicle Loans -State Bank ortndla 14.99 14.99 
Vehlde l.oans-South Indian Blink 68.61 68.61 
Vehicle I.Mns -HDFC Dank l.ld 110.59 110.59 
Tenn Loan -Catholic Syrilm Bank 5.565.55 5,565.55 
Term l.oan -Canara Bank 4,816.39 4,816.:i9 
Term Loan -Bank of Baroda 1,250.00 1,250.00 
Tern, Lo.an -Karur Vysya Bank 4.963.32 4,%3.32 
Tenn Loan -Indian Bank 2,9-44.97 2,944.97 
Tenn loan· Federal bank 1,722.39 1,722.39 
Tenn Loan - Bank Of Maharashtra 6,655.95 6,655.95 
Temt Loan· UCO Bank 4.956.14 4.956.14 
Tenn Loan· IDFC First Bank 27.361.39 27.361.39 
Term Loan - Kamataka Bank Ltd 621.12 621.12 
Tl'rm Loan- Bandhan bank 17,281.09 17,281.09 
Term Loan-Ujjivan ,mall finance bank 1,:i33.33 1,333.33 
Tenn loan- 10B 8,150.00 8,150.00 
Term Loan-South indian lnnk •i,027.00 4,027.00 
Term Loau- EQuitas Small Finan~ 83nk 2,888.75 2,888.75 
Term loan-Woori Bank 3,750.00 3,750.00 
Term Lo.tn- Union B.tnk of lndl.a 7,013.85 7,013.85 

Temt Lo.an- HDFC Bank Ltd 1,704.60 1,704.60 

Term Loan- St.tnd.ud Ch.1nered Bank 9,500.00 9,500.00 

Tenn Loan- Utbrsh Small Finance Bank 3,208.33 3,208.33 

(II) from Jinondal Institutions -
Tern, Loan- Tata r.apltal 1,714.29 1,714.29 

Tem1 Loan- Hlndu}a Leyland - -
Term Lo.tn-oxyio 5,333.33 S.333.33 

Term Loan- Bajaj Finserv 4,967.26 4,967.26 

Tern, Loan- Kerala Fin.tncial Corporation 4,416.00 4,416.00 

Tenn Loan- Poonawalla 11,933.14 11,933.14 

-
Unamortized expense of Tern, Loan -1193.98 -893.98 

(b) Loans from related party - - - -
(c) Loaas repayable on deinand 
(I) from banks 

South Indian Bank Ltd 9,822.72 9,822.72 

State Bank of India 4,028.57 4,028.57 

Dhanbxmi Bank 4,686.49 4,686.49 

Indus Ind Bank 19,780.88 19,780.88 

Union Bank oflndia 7,719.42 7,719.4Z 

Punjab Nationid Bank 4,989.49 4,989.49 

Karur Vysya Bank 2,404.27 2.404.27 

DCB Bank 4,960.06 4,960.06 

UCO Bank 1,976.13 1,976.13 

IDBI Bank 3,935.73 3,935.73 

h1dlan Bank 1,007.36 1,007.36 

HDFC Bank Ltd 7,500.00 7,500.00 

C3tholic Syri:ln Bank 2,499.99 2,-199.99 

IOFC First Bank Ud 504.52 504.52 

Yes bank 5,500.00 5,500.00 

Bandhan Bank 397.lll 397.81 

City Union Bank 997.34 997.34 

BOB Credit Canls 358.06 358.06 

l(it) from firtancial Institutions - -
lntere£t accrued, but not due on the above -410.64 410.64 

Total (Al 2,30,8S7.88 . - 2,30,8S7.88 

Borrowln2s ln India 2,30,8S7.88 - - 2,30,8S7,88 

Borrowln2s outside India - . - -
Total (8) 2,30,857.88 - - 2,30,857.88 

-



Noles to Onandal statements 

As 01 March 31, 2021 (Audllcd) 
At amortised cost At fair value Ocslgnotcd at ralr Tot11I 

Particular.< through profit or value through 
loss proOt or loss 

(;,) 1·cnn loan 

(I) from banks 
Vchirk Lo3ns -Slate Bank or Ind in 26.6(\ 26.6(\ 
Vehicle Loans -Bank or Maharashtra 80.22 80.22 
Vehicle Loans -HDF'C Hank Ltd 127.06 127.06 
Tenn Loan -Catholic Sy, ian Bank 1,23U8 1,234.28 
l"enn Loan -Canara B.-ink 11,687.69 11,687.69 
Term J.,u;m -Bank ufRaruda 5,052.41 5,052.41 
Tenn Loan -1-arur Vysya Bank 7,149.20 7,149.20 
Term Loan -Indian Oank 6,462.27 6,462.27 
Term Loan -Punjab & Simi Bank 914.37 91437 
Term loan-Utkarsh Small Finance Bank 187.50 187.50 
Term Loan - B;ink Of ~bhar:t.~htr.i 14,790.90 H,790.90 

Tenn Loan - UCO Rank 7,675.36 7,675.36 
Tenn Loan - IDFC First Bank 9,826.33 9,826.33 
Term f,nan • Knniai.ika Bank l.td 2,565.29 2,565.29 
Term Loan- Bandhan bank 15,120.88 15,120.88 
Term loan- IOR ◄,445.00 4,◄45.00 

Tenn Loan- F,quil::ls Small Finance BMl< 60♦.19 604.19 
Term Loan- Un inn Bank or India 4,305.45 4,305.45 
Term l.oao- IIDFC Bank l,td 3,430.85 3,430.85 

(ii) from finandol lnstin1tiMs -
Term Loan- Tata Capir.tl 959.37 959.37 
Term Lo.1n- llinduja Leyland 729.16 729.16 
Term Loan- Bajaj Finserv 3,692.23 3,692.23 

-
Unamonlzed expense of Term Loan -937.65 -937.65 

(b) Loans from related p.arty - - - -
(c) Loans repa)'llble on demand 
(i) from banks 

South lndl3n Bank Ltd 9,352.66 9,352.66 
St"dte Danko( lnd~1 3,993.87 3,993.87 
Oha.nla=f Bank 4,827.40 4,827.40 
Indus Ind Bank 19,758.19 19,758.19 
Union llank of JndlJ 9,865.15 9,865.15 
Punjab National Bank 4,557.05 4,557.85 
Karm· Vy5y,1 nank 2,424.9:l 2,424.92 
DCB Bank 2,499.55 2,499.55 
UCO~nk 1,734.80 1,734.80 
IDBI Bank 3,957.05 3,957.05 
Indian Bank 1.008.54 1.008.54 
HDFC Bank Ltd 15,117.52 15,117.52 
C3tbollc Syrian Bank 5,000.00 5,000.00 

IOFC First Bank Ltd 500.00 500.00 

Yesb.mk 5,000.00 5,000.00 

Bandhan Dank 495.22 495.22 

City Union Bank 995.35 995.35 

non Credit Cards 4.81 4.81 

1(11} from Jlnandal Institutions -

Interest acaued, but not due on the above - -
Tot21 (A) 1,91,229.90 - . 1,91,229.90 
Borrowing¥ In India 1,91,229.90 - . 1,91,229.90 
Oorrowinp outside India - - . 
Tota.I (BJ 1,91,229.90 . - 1,91,229.90 

\ 



Noles IO n111nd1I statenicnts 

9.1 ~curl\)' Dcnils 

Our Tern, Loans. Ca.sh Credlt'I, and Wor1dng Caplllll demand I.cans an.- secured by Parlpassu nrst charge by w.iy or 
hypothecatton or all chargeable current assets. book dtbts, loans and adv:rncn and receivables lnclndlng gold loan recelv:ibles 

and C.Uh amt Dauk balances & svecifled fixt'II assets ot the Company l'tluivale11t to security cover slipulatt'<I by respectivt banks. 

11,e loans are also 11uanmtttd hy the personal guarantee of Mr. Mathew Muthooltu - Managlni; Director of the Company & M~ 

Nlz:xy Mathe\Y - Whole Ume Director of the Comp.my as per the terms a~eed wllh the respective lender b,mk. 

In addition to the speciRed properties of the conipany which arc hypoU,ccatcd, l"-?rsonal property of the Managing Dirt,ctnr of 
th<' Comp.1ny Mr. Math<'w Muthoottu, specllled propertlc.~ anc1 Corporate Gu,11,mtcc of M/s MuU100U11 Mini Hotels l'vt l.td, Mini 
Muthooltu ~dlt India Pvt Ltd and Muthoottu Mini Theatres Private Limited which arc the entitles promoted by the promoters 
or the Company Mmcly Mr. Mathew Muthoottu & Mrs Niny Mathew, have ~!so been provider! to St.Jtc D,1nk oflndia, CSR Bank 
Ltd, Kantr Vysya Bank. Union llank of lndi!, Kerala l'inancial Cm1x>retion, Dhanlaxmi Dank and IIDFC Dank as collat,ral 
security. on me basis of agrccmrnt entered lnro wlth the respective IMn~. 

In the c.iseofTerm loans from Union Bank, Bajaj Finance & TATA Capital, exduslve charge Is created by way ofhypothecallun 
or Micro finance reCt'ivahlcs. 

9.2 Terms of repayment 

Secured Term loans from Banks· 

Name of Bank/ Fl 

Bandhan bank 

B.1ntlhan bank 

Bantlhan bank 

13andhan bank 

Dalal Finance l.td 

Bala! Finance Ud 

Banko( Baroda 

Bank of Maharashtra 

Bank 00lah,1rashtra 

Canara Dank 

C.1nara e.,nk 

r.anara Bank 

CSB Baitk 

CSR Bank 

1;.iuitas Small Finance Bank 

Federal Bank 

HDFC 

lndl.ln Bank 

IDFC First Bank 

IDFC Firlil Bank 

IDFC First Bank 

Indian Overseas Bank 

lndi,1n Overseas Bank 

Karnataka Dank 

As at 31-03-2025 
I CRs in Lakhsl 

1.260.Z♦ 

S,464.28 

(,,052,74 

4,503.83 

1,250.00 

3,062.50 

l.ZS0.00 

2,017.92 

4,638.03 

1623.00 

SSS.56 

2,637.83 

567.04 

<1,990.51 

2.UOU.75 

1.722.39 

1,704.60 

2,944.97 

4.514.16 

8,680.56 

14,166.67 

3,335.00 

4,815.00 

621.12 

Terms ur Reo;ivment 

H equal monthly instalments of l 312.50 lakhs ,vtth 
morutorium 3 mnths 

24 equal monthly Instalments of, 417 after 3 months 
morotarium 

H months· 7 qnmcrly Install men!!- of Rs.857.14 lakhs 
with 3 mnths morolmium 

24 months• 8 uua1tcrlv lnst-Alhrwnts o( RS.562.50 lakhs 

24 rqn.il monthly Installments of l 25 lakhs 

24 coll,l] monthly Installments of RsHS.83 lakhs 

30 montl1lv Instalments of ,2so lakhs 

5 Half yearty instalment of Rs. 2000 lakhs each 

30 monthlv insttlmenls of U34 Webs 

JS monthly lnstllments of U81 lakhs and last 
111~1.tlment of U65 Lakhs 

35 monthly Instalments of U 11 lakhs and last 
inmlrncntofUSO Lakhs 

35 monthly inst>lments or '139 lalchs and last 
inst~lmcntofU3S l.akhs 

54 monthly installments of lts.55.56 lakhs t10Jid3y 
I ocriod 6 months 

6 Quarterly installments of Rs 714 lakhs and last 
IOU311.C( instalment of7l 6 IRkhs 

17 monthly installments of Rs.227.25 lakhs each :.nd 
last lnstillment of22 l.75 lakhs 

23 Monthly lnstalm,mts art Rsl 15.65 lakh and last 
Installment ortlsl 16.12 lakhs 

18months • 6 Quarterll' reoavml!nts • 

12 Ouamrlv installments ofRs.'117 lakhs 

36 l!Qual monthlv lnstallmenti. of Rs347.22 l~khs 

36 cuual monthly installments of R.,347.22 lakhs 

36 c11ual monthlv lnst:tllments uf Rs416.671akhs 

53 monthly lnstillmcnts of 92.S l.llchs and last one 
month installment of97.S lakhs (morotorimn of6 
months\ 

5:1 monthly lnst:1llmc11ts of ?2.5 lakh.~ and last one 
month installment of97,S lakhs (morotoriurn of 6 
months) 

30 monthly instalments of U62 lakhs and last 
Instalment of U 40 Lakhs 



Notes 10 nnanclal statements 

Karur Vy<y,1 0Jnk 

Kllrur Vvsva Dank 

Kon,r Vv<u,1 !lank 

Kcrala FlnanciJI Comoral1on 

OX\7.ll ~1nanclal S.:rv1ces 1.td 

Oxrw l'inancial Services Ltd 

Oxvzo Financial Stt\1ces ltd 

Poonawalla Flncoro 

Poona111-~lla Finroru 

South Indian Bank 

Standard Chartered Dank 

Union Dank Oflmlia 

Union ll.lnk or lndiJ 

Union Bank or India 

Union Bank orlndiJ 

UCO Bank 

UCO Bank 

Uiiivan Small Finance Bank 

Utkarsh Small Finance Bank 

Woori Bank 

Tat, Canital 

ll3lai Finance Ltd 

State Bank or India 

South Indian Bank 

HDFC 

HDFC 

Toi.I.I 

• Instalment amounts varies for each month. 

u1nstalmets (or vehicle loans are Including Interest 

681.82 

1,0011.77 

J,272.73 

4.416.00 

2,500.00 

l,33:t3J 

1,500.00 

6933.14 

5,000.00 

4,027.00 

9,500.00 

2,499.95 

1,041.60 

1,597.22 

1,875.00 

2,156.11 

2,500.00 

1,333.33 

3,208.33 

3 750.00 

1,714.29 

654.76 

14.99 

68.61 

53.97 

56.62 

1.48272.38 

11 OuJrtrrlv Instalments orU27.27 I.Jkhs 

57 monthly ln~t:alnicnL< or ~4J.ns L.,khs with 3 months 
morntorium 

11 ~uarterty lnstllllments or il<3b3.64 lakh< nnrr 3 
1110nlhs holidav nerlod. 1'enor or 36 months 

59 monthly Installments ol R.<84 lakh~ & last 
lnsullmcnt of Rs H lokhs 

18 eoual monthlv rcnavmrnts Rs 277.78 lakhs 

18 l!llual monthlv renavments Rsl!J~l3 lakhs 

18 eaual monthlv rnavments Rs83.33 lakhs 

24 monlhlv installmenls • 

24 monlhlv in~tallments • 

35 monthly f11st.1lt1wnts of U39 lakbs an(last 
tnst,,llmcnt or l :IS lakhs 

24 cuual monlhlv Installments orR1<.395Jl.1 lakhs 

36 1•u11al mo11thlv installments of R., 69.44 lakhs 

36 monthly inslalmcnls of ,69.44 lakhs anti lasl 
Instalment of {69.60 l.akhs 

36 monthly instalments on69.◄4 lakh~ and la.<t 
instalment of ,69.60 Lakhs 

36 monthly lnstilmena of ,69.44 lakhs and last 
inst.1lment of {69.60 Lakhs 

57 ~ual monthly instalments of Rs.87.72 Jakhs after 3 
months morotortum 1 

36 eoual monU1lv Installments of Rs.138.89 Jakbs 

IS caual monthlv installments of Rs166.67 lakhs 

24 monthlv lnsbllments of Rs J 45.83 lakhs 

24 coual monthlv lnstlllm~nts of Rs20833 lkahs 

24 monthlv installments of {95.24 lakhs 

24 monthlv enual Installment~ or {65.48 lakhs 

84 monthlv Installments ,o.96 Lal<hs•• 

60 monthlv installments n.60 lakhs'• 

84 manthlv fnsbllments '1.12 lakhs•· 

84 moncblv Installments '1.02 lakhs•• 



Noles to On1nclaJ S'llllemena 

Nnlc 1 o, Subordirtoted IJ~bllltles 
IRuoeu In Lnkhsl 

As Ml March 31st, 202S (Audited) 

PArtkul11ri. Al ■mnrtiscd enst Al fair V-Jluc Designated ut lair Totr.l 
through proflt or value t.hrouglt 

los~ proOl or loss 

Subordon~rM Unbl1ittcs In lnd1:1 H,3S◄,91 34,354.91 
Undalmed St1bon1inated U3bllltltt in India 147.01 147.01 
Subordinated Liabll!lles outside India . 
Total 34,501.92 . . 34 501.92 

As at March 31, 2024 (Audited) 

Particulars At amortised cost Al fair vah1e Designated al fair Total 
through profit or value through 

loss uroflt or loss 
Subordinated LJabllltics In India :10,so2,33 30,50233 
Unclaimed Subordina~ Liahilitic~ in India 161.98 161.96 
Subordinated Liabilities outside India . 
Total 30,664.31 . . 30,664.31 

Note 10.1 Details of Subordinated Lt.abilities 

Subordinated Debt Is subordinated to the claims of other creditors and qualifies as Tier II caplt.:il subject to discounting as may 
be applic-.lble as per Ma~-ter Directio11 - Reseive Bank of India (Non-Banking Flnandal Company- Scale llased R«.>gul,11ion) 
Diri:ctlon.~. 2023. The outstanding amount of privately 11laccd ~11bordinated debt stood at '34,354.9l lakh5 (Pn.-vlou., yc:1r: 
lJ0,502.33 lakhs). 

lntcre~t Pav- out• Maturitv 

Period Amount A.~ a.t 
Interest R;ite 

31.03.2025 
202S-26 22.25 10.50% 
2026-27 192.39 12.26% 
202i-28 2,024.66 14.29% 
2028-29 3,161.65 13.64%-14.46% 
2029-30 6,573.99 13.64%-14.46% 
2030-31 219.64 13.64% 
Total 12,194.58 

lntcrcsl Pa •out• Monlhl 
Period AmountAsat Interest Rate 

2025-26 1.574.61 10.50% 
.!026-27 429.10 9.5%-10.25% 
2027-28 10,427.43 10%-10.5% 
2028-29 6.501.20 10.50% 
2029-30 2,929.40 10.5%-14.46% 
2030·31 298.58 10.50% 
Total 22,160.32 



Notes to financial statements

N 11: Other Financial liabili

Note 12: Provisions

Note 13: Other Non-financial liabilities

u ees in Lakhs

u ees in Lakhs

u ees in Lakhs

Particulars As at March 31st,
2025 (Audited)

As at March 3t,2O24
(Audited)

Expenses payable

Rent Payable

Rent Deposit
Kotak Insurance Payable

Auction Surplus Payable

Other Payable

7,365.47

248.39

49.65

443.39

92.52

766.48

246.52

49.35

143.73

392.91

95.78
Total 2,r99.36 t,694.t7

Particulars As at March 31st,
2025 (AuditedJ

As at March 31,2024
[Audited)

Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity
- Others

736.70

46.50

549.07

32.55
Total 743.20 54L62

Particulars As at March 31st,
2025 (Audited)

As at March 31,2024
(Audited)

Statutory dues payable

Others
708.96

73.73

526.22

50.60
57 6.A2Total

\db"TDL--

742.O9



Notes to linancial statements

Note 14: Equity share capital

14.1 The reconciliation ofequity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end ofthe period
in LakhsRuDee

Particulars As at March 31st, 2025
(Auditedl

As at March 31, 2024
(Audited)

Authorised
325,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
250,32,539 Equity shares of Rs. 100/- each fully
paid up

32,500.00

25,032.54

32,500.00

25,032.54

TotalEquity 25,032.5+ 2s,o32,54

14.2 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 100/- per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share, ln the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets ofthe Company, after distribution ofall preferentjal amounts. The distribution will be in
prcportion to the number ofequityshares held by the shareholders.

14.3 Reconciliation ofthe number ofEquity shares and ofEquity share capital amount outstanding at the beginning
and at the end ofthe year

Ru s in Lakhs

14.4 Details ofE ul shareholders holdi more than syo shares in the com

Particulars
As at March 31, 2024 [Audited)

No. ofshares held o/o holding in the class

Mr. Mathew Muthoottu
Mrs Nizzy Mathew

Mini Muthoottu Hotels [P) Ltd

Mini Muthoottu credit India (Pl Ltd

59.360/o

13.400k

10.190/o

s.670/o

14.5 Disclosure as to aggregate number aod class ofshares allotted as pursuant to coltract(s) without payment
being received in cash, fully paid up by way ofbonus shares and shares bought back

Particulars

Fully paid up pursuant
to contract(s) without

payment being
received in cash

Fullypaid up by way
ofbonus shares

Shares bought
back

Equity Shares :

2019-2020
2074-2019
2017 -2014
2076-2017
2075-2016

AmountParticulars
As at March 31, 2024
Shares issued during the period

2,50,32,539 25,032.54

As at March 31, 2025 2,5O,32,539 25,O32.54

As at March 31st, 2025 (Audited)
No. ofshares held o/o holding in the class

7,48,59,912

33,54,446
25,5L,29B

14,19,441

59.3 60lo

t3.400/0

10.190/0

5 670/o

Mr. Mathew Muthoottu
Mrs Nizzy Mathew
Mini Muthoottu Hotels (P) Ltd
Mini Muthoonu credit India (P) Ltd

Particulars

1,4A,59,9121

33,54,4461
2s.s1,2eB 

I

14,19,841 

|

In Numbers I

E6,hh*J+r



Notes to financial statements

Shareho ofPromoters

Note 15: other

Shares held by promoters at the end ofthe
year

No. ofshares Yooftotal shares

Yo change during
the year

Mr. Mathew Muthoottu
Mrs Nizzy Mathew

1 ,48,59 ,972,00
33,54,446.00

59.360/o

13.4004

0.00%

0.00%

Rupee
Particulars As at March 31st 2025

(Audited)
As at March 31,2024

(Audited)

Statutory Reserves

special Reserve Fund(u/s 45 fC ofRBl Act, 19341
Balance at the beginning ofthe year

Addr TransFer from Retained earnings

Balance at the end ofthe year

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Balance at the beginning ofthe year

Add: Transfer from/(to) Retained earnings

Balance at the end ofthe year

Impairment reserve
Balance at the beginning ofthe year

Addr Transfer from/(to) Retained earnings

Balance at the eDd ofthe year
Secu ti€s Premium
Balance at the beginning ofthe year

Add: Securities premium on share options exercised
during the year

Balance at the end ofthe year

Revaluation Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Amount transferred
Balance at the end ofthe year

Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning ofthe year
Add: Profit for the period
Add/Less: Appropriation :-

Transfer to Special Reserve Fund

Transfer from/(to) Debenture Redemption Res

Transfer to Impairment Reserve

Total appropriations
Balalce at the end ofthe year

350.00

350.00

27,766.36
9,452.97

1-67.95

34.04
201.99

9,203.41

1,890.59

71,094.00

8,064.15

8,064.15

(1,890.59)

(34.04)
(r,924.63')
35,294.7O

350.00

350.00

27,554.72
7,765,31

7,650.35

1,553.06
9,203.41

167.95

767.95

7,444.L5

220.00

8,064.15

(1,ss3.061

(1,ss3.06)
27 ,7 66.36

Total 55,004.84 45,5S1.88

in Lakh

*_1:-:.,,

\*9-



Notes to financial statements • 
15.t Nature and purpose orreserve 
Statutory reserve 

Statutory Reserve represents the Reserve Fund created u/s 451C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. In current year t 
1890.59 lakhs is appropriated from Statement of Profit and Loss to the Special Reserve Fund. 

Debenture Redemption Reserve 

TI1e Company, heing an NDFC registered with the Reserve Bank of India under Section 45 IA of the Rm Act, 193-4, is not 
required to create a Debenture Redemption Resen•e, in respect of public issue of debentures and debentures issued by it on a 
private placement basis, Pursuant to Rule 18(7)(b)(lll) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, as 
amended vide the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Amendment Rules dated August 16, 2019. 

Securities Premium 

This Reserve represents the premimn on Issue of equity shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Alt, 2013. 

Revaluation Reserve 

Revaluation reserve represents a portion of the value of land that has been revalued based on the valuation made by 
approved extemal valuer during financial year 2012-13. 

Retained Earnings 

·Ibis Reserve represents the cumulative prollts of the Company. This Reserve can be utilized in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act 2013. 

Impairment Reserve 

In accordance with RBI circular no. RBl/2019-20/170 dated March 13, 2020, the company is required to provide for 
impairment allowances, if the impairment allowance computed as pt•r the extant prudential norms on Income Recognition, 
Asset Classification and Provisioning (lRACP) is higher than the impairment allowance under Ind AS l 09 

In FY 2024-2025, Rs. 34.04 lakhs has been appropriated from net profit after tax to 'Impairment Reserve'( Previous year 
2023-2024-NU).Thc balance in the 'Impairment Rese1ve' shall not be reckoned for regulatory capital 

No withdrawals are permitted from this reserve without prior permission from the Department of Supervision, RBI. The 
requirement for 'Impairment Reserve' shall be reviewed, going forward as per further instructions from RBI 



Notes to financial statements

Note 16: Interest income

Note 17: Other income on loans

Note 18: Net in on fair value cha es

Note 19: Sale of services

Period ended March
31,2025 (Audited)

Period ended March
31, 2024 fAudited)

Particulars On Financial asset
measured at

amortised cost

On Financial asset
measured at

amortised cost
illnterest on Loans

On Gold loan
On Micro Finance
On loan against property

iillnterest on deposits with bank 3,2A5.12

56,809.0:t
5,a37.2+

80.67

2,590.+6

Total 77,694.71 65,317.3I

ees in Lakhs

Ru ees in Lakhs

Ru in Lakhs

Ru ees in Lakhs

Period ended March
31,2025 fAuditcd)

Period ended March
31, 2024 [Audited)

On Financial asset
measured at

amortised cost

On Financial asset
measured at

amortised cost

Particulars

1,030.89Processing fees on loans 1,,1,64.96

1,030.89Total t,L64.96

Period ended March
31,2025 (Audited)

Period ended March
31, 2O24 (Audited)Particulars

9.13

(A) Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit
or loss
(i) On trading portfolio

- lnvestments
- Derivatives
- others

(B) Loss on fair valuation ofequity shares

1,598.49

1,598.49 9.13Total Net gain on fair value changes (Cl

Fair Value changes
- Realised
- Unrealised 1,,598.+9

1,598.49 9.13Total Net gain on fair value changes

Period ended March
31, 2O24 fAudited)

Particulars
Period ended March
31, 2025 (Audited)

5.68 23.O3Other Operating Income

5.68 23.o3Total

67,053.10
7,305.22

55.27

9.13

\*q'=



Notes to financial statements
Note 20: Other lncome

Note 21: Finance Costs

Note 22: Im airment on nnancial instruments

Note 23: Em o Benefits es

Ru ees in Lakhs

Ru ees in Lakhs

Ru in Lakhs

Ru ees in Lakhs

Particulars Period ended March
31, 2025 fAudited)

Period ended March
31, 2024 (Audited)

Other non-operating income 468.86 3 63.0 6

Total 468.86 3 63.06

Period ended March
31, 2025 (Audited)

Period ended March
31, 2024 (Audited)

Particulars On financial
liabilities measured

at amortised cost

On financial
liabilities measured

at amortised cost

10,053.62
2,477.75

232.08
306.24

1,,058.27
3,504.5 2

239.L3
1,1,78.69

1,9,952.59
751.66

1,6,892.66
751.51

lnterest on borrowings (other than debt securitiesJ
Term Loan Amortisation
Interest on debt securities

-Public issue
-Pvt Placement
-NCD amortization-Public
-NCD amortization-Private
-Commercial paper discount amortisation

lnterest on subordinated liabilities
Commercial Paper expenses
Bank Charges

34,530.94Total 39,7 54.55

Period ended March
31,2025 fAudited)

Period ended March
31,2024 [Audited)

On financial
instruments
measured at

amortised cost

Particulars

7,O1,3.37
+07.05

13.95

590.57
85.54
18.60

Loans
Bad Debts written Off
Other Assets

1,434.37 694.71Total

Period ended March
31, 2025 fAudited)

Period ended March
31, 2024 fAudited)

Particulars

13.508.31
902.38
345.03
+02.3r
982.73
118.86

10,265.67
azs.9s
142.71
3 50.30
817.99
55.96

Salaries and Wages
lncentives to Staff
Gratuity
Bonus
Contributions to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

12,45A.5A16,259.O2Total

12,849.95
412.81
326.52

42.24

2,963.27

291,.98

On financial
instruments
measured at

amortised cost

\*sh-



Notes to financial statements
Note 24: D reciati

Note 25: Other

Note 25.1 Auditor's fees and

amortization and im irment u in Lakhs

ees in Lakhs

u in Lakhs

1,r

,4CC

Particulars Period ended March
31, 2024 (Auditedl

Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangib)e assets

1,,122.17
34.47

1,003.81
34.59

1,160.58 1,038.40

Particulars Period ended March
31,2025 (Audited)

Period ended March
31,2024 fAudited]

3,953.60
744.7 3

486.75
349.84
860.60

37.75
38.96

447.67
506.79
4A7.45

0.07
986.53

L5.12
539.54

23.42
167.65
167 .7 6

25.84

74.12

3,188.58
415.46

335.64
695.39
39.85
26.45

230.74
364.94
335.75

o.o7
422.66
22.22

359.75
21,.79

1,29.49
172.4+

1.3+

20.08

Rent, taxes and energy costs
Repairs and maintenance
Communication Costs
Printing and stationery
Advertisement and publicity
Director's fees, allowances and expenses
Auditor's fees and expenses
Legal and Professional charges
Insurance
General Office Expenses
Brokerage expenses
Travelling Expenses to Staff
Vehicle Running & Maintenance Expenses
Security Charges
Subscription Charges
Corporate social responsibility
Public lssue NCD Expenses
Private lssue NCD Expenses
Loss on sale of Fixed assets
Other expenditure

9,934.19 7,405.52Total

Period ended March
31, 2025 (Audited)

Period ended March
31, 2oZ4 (AuditedlParticulars

15.75
6.50
3.98
o.22

21.75
6.50
8.98
1,.73

For Statutory Audit
For Taxation Matters
For Other Services
For Reimbursement of Expenses

34.96 26.45Total

I Period ended March
I zt,zozs (Audted)



Notes to financial statements

Note 26r Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders ofCompany by
the weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding during theyear.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders ofthe company lafter adjusting for interest on
the convertible preference shares and interest on the conveftible bond, in each case, net oftax, if any) by the weighted average
number ofequity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equjty shares that would be issued
on the conversion ofall the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

!n
Particulars Period ended March

31,2025 fAuditedl
Year ended March
31, 2024 fAuditedl

Net profit atFibutable to ordinary equity holders in lakhs

weighted average number ofequity shares for basic earnings per share

Effect ofdilution:
Weighted average number ofequity shares for diluted earnings per share

Eamings per share:

9,417.65

2,50,32,539

2,50,32,539

7,743.74

2,49,52,97 6

2,49,52,97 6

37.62 31.19
37.62 31.19

o
68

cli/
01)'

fla2

c

un I

&

o.,

Basic earnings Der share [{)
Diluted earoinqs Der share [l)



MUTHO0TTU MINI FINANCIERSLIMITED 
Muthoottu Roval Tower, Kaloor, Kochi, Kerala - 682017 

Notes to Financial Statemnents for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

1. Corporate Information 

Muthoottu Mini Financiers Limited is a public limited company incorporated under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was originally established as a 
private limited company on March 18, 1998, and was subsequently converted into a 
public limited company following a special resolution passed by its shareholders on 

September 14, 2013. A fresh Certificate of Incorporation reflecting the change was 
issued by the Registrar of Companies, Kochi on November 27, 2013. 

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve 
Bank of India (RBI) and operates under the Middle Layer (NBFC-ML) category as per the 
Scale-Based Regulatory (SBR) Framework introduced by the RBI. The framework was 
notified via RBI Circular No. RBI/2021-22/112 DOR.CRE.REC. No.60/03.10.001/2021 
22 dated October 22, 2021, and became effective from October 1, 2022, based on the 
Company's asset size exceeding 1,000 crores. 

As of March 31, 2025, the Company operates througha network of 948 branches 
across India, 

The Comnpany is also registered with the Ministry of Corporate Afairs (MCA) and the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI). The relevant 
registration details are as follows: 

RBI Registration Number: N-16.00175 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U65910KL1998PLC012154 
IRDA Registration Code: CA0122 

The Company is primarily engaged in the Gold Loan business and has diversified into various other financial and allied services including Microfinance, Insurance Agency, Money Transfer Services, and Travel & Tourism. The Company's debt securities are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). It has raised funds through listed public debentures in compliance with SEBI regulations, and through private placement of debentures and subordinated debt in accordance with RBI guidelines and also through the issuance of Commercial Paper in compliance with the guidelines issued by the Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA). 
The Registered and Corporate Office of the Company is located at: 65/623K, Muthoottu Royal Towers, Kaloor, Kochi, Ernakulam, Kerala - 682017. 
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2. Statement of Compliance 

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with 

Indian Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
other relevant provisions of the Act 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, were approved by the 
Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 21, 2025. 

3. Basis of Preparation, Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following 
framework and principles: 

A. Basis for Preparation of Financial Statements 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time), and other relevant provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as 
modified by the application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant 
Indian Accounting Standards. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless 
otherwise stated. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain 
critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent 
liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where 
assumptions are significant to the Company. 

B. Presentation of Financial Statements 

The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule III (Division II) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross 
basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognized amounts without being contingent on a future event and the parties intend to 
settle on a net basis. 

C. New Accounting Standards Issued but Not Yet Effective 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which introduce amendments to certain existing 
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standards, effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April1, 2025. 

Key changes include: 

Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts: This new standard replaces Ind AS 104 and 

establishes principles for recognition, measurement, presentation, and 

disclosure of insurance contracts. While primarily applicable to insurance 

companies, entities involved in insurance-related activities such as insurance 

agency services -should evaluate the relevance and impact of the new standard 

on their operations and reporting. 
Amendments to Ind AS 116 - Leases: These amendments clarify the 
accounting treatment of lease liabilities arising from sale and leaseback 

transactions, requiring that any gain or loss related to the retained right-of-use is 
not recognized immediately. This change enhances consistency in lease 
accounting and could be relevant where such transactions exist. 

The Company is in the process of evaluating the potential impact of these amendments 

on its financial statements and will implement them as applicable in the subsequent 
reporting periods. 

D. Functional and Presentation Currency 

These standalone or separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared 
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act. 

4. Material Accounting Policies 

A. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company, and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable. 

(a) Interest Income 

Interest income from financial assets is recognized on an accrual basis using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method on the gross carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortized cost, other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). 
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees, transaction costs, and other premiums or discounts paid or received) through the expected life of the financial instrument to the carrying amount at initial recognition. While estimating future cash receipts, factors such as expected behavior, life cycle of the financial asset, probable fluctuations in collateral value, etc., are considered, which can impact the EIR. 
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In cases where management believes that the recovery of interest is uncertain due to 
changes in the price of the underlying collateral or other factors, the Company 
recognizes income on such loans only to the extent it is confident of recovering interest 
through the sale of the underlying security or otherwise. 

Such interests, where instalments are overdue in respect of non-performing assets are 
recognized on realization basis. Any such income recognized and remaining unrealized 
after the instalments become overdue with respect to non-performing assets is 
reversed. 

(b) Dividend Income 

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established, which 
is typically when the dividends are declared by the investee, and it is probable that the 
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company. The amount 
of the dividend income is recognized when it can be measured reliably. 

(c) Income from Sale of Services 

Revenue from the sale of services is recognized when control of the promised services is 
transferred to the customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be 
received under the contract. Where the performance obligation is satisfied over time, 
and where there is no uncertainty regarding the measurement or collectability of 
consideration, revenue is recognized using the percentage of completion method. 

The Company applies the five-step model framework under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers to recognize revenue from service contracts, as follows: 

1. Identify the contract with the customer -A contract is considered within the 
scope of Ind AS 115 when it is approved by both parties, the payment terms are 
identified, and it is probable that the consideration will be collected. 

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract - Each distinct service 
promised in the contract is identified. 

3. Determine the transaction price- The total consideration expected from the 
customer is determined. 

4. Allocate the transaction price -The transaction price is allocated to each 
performance obligation in the contract based on the stand-alone selling price of 
the services. 

5. Recognize revenue - Revenue is recognized as the performance obligations are 
satisfied. 

(d) Rental Income 

Rental income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under "Revenue from Operations." 

(e) Fees and Commission Income 
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Fees and Commission income are recognised at a point in time, when the performance 
obligation is satisfied, typically when the underlying transaction (such as Third party 
Product Services) is completed and the right to consideration is established. 

() Net Gain/Loss on Fair Value Changes 

Changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities classified as Fair Value 
Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Unrealized gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized as part of 
Net Gain/Loss on Fair Value Changes under Revenue from Operations. 

If there is a net gain, it is recognized as Net Gains on Fair Value Changes under revenue, 
and if there is a net loss, it is disclosed as part of Expenses. Realized gains or losses on 
the sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL, as well as debt or equity 
instruments measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI). 
are recognized as Net Gain/Loss on Fair Value Changes. As of the reporting date, the 
Company does not hold any debt instruments classified as FVOCI. 

B. Financial Instruments 

(a) Classification of Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset for one entity 
and a financial liability or equity instrument for another entity. Financial assets and 
liabilities are recognized in the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

The classification of financial instruments is based on their contractual cash flow 

characteristics and the business model within which they are managed. The 
classification determines the measurement and recognition of financial instruments in 
the financial statements. 

(b) Business Model Assessment 

The classification and measurenment of financial assets are determined by the results of 
the Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test and the business model 
assessment. The Company determines its business model at a level that reflects how 
groups of financial assets are managed to achieve a particular business objective, such 

as collecting contractual cash flows or selling financial assets. 

The business model assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence, 
including: 

How the performance of the assets is evaluated and measured; 
The risks affecting the performance of the assets; 
How these risks are managed; 

THRISSUR-i 



How managers are compensated. 

The Company also monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value 
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) that are derecognized before maturity. 
This helps to understand why assets are disp0sed of and whether the reasons align with 
the original business model for holding those assets. The Company's continuous 
assessment ensures that the business model remains appropriate and evaluates 
whether any change in the business model requires a prospective change in 
classification. 

Financial Assets 

Initial Recognition & Measurement 

A financial asset is initially recognized at fair value in the balance sheet. Transaction 
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of a financial asset are added to or deducted 
from the fair value of the asset, depending on its classification: 

For financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), 
transaction costs are expensed immediately in profit or loss. 
For assets measured at amortized cost or FVOCI, transaction costs are added or 
deducted from the asset's fair value at initial recognition. 

Subsequent Measurement 

After initial recognition, financial assets may be classified into the following categories: 

Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost: 
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost ifit is held withina business 
model whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual 
terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial Assets Measured at FVOCI: 
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to both collect contractual cash flows and sell financial assets, and the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. 

Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL: 
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI classification are measured at FVTPL. This includes assets held for trading or those designated at fair value on initial recognition. 

Financial Liabilities 

Initial Recognition & Measurement 
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All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, net of directly attributable 

transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, 
non-convertible debentures, loans and borrowings, and bank overdrafts. 

Subsequent Measurement 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the 

effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

Derecognition of Financial Asset/Liability 

A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual cash flows from the asset expire, 
or when the Company transfers its rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a 
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the 
Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability. 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation is discharged, cancelled, or 
expires. If an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender with 
substantially different terms, or if the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, it is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial 
liability and the consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss. 

(c) Impairment of Financial Assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses 'Expected Credit Loss' model (ECL), for 
evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those measured at Fair value 
through profit and loss. Expected Credit Loss, at each reporting date, is measured through 
a loss allowance for a financial asset: 

At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on 
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. 
At an anmount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, if the credit risk on a 
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 

Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset. 
12-month expected credit losses means the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on financial assets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial assets credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the change in the risk of a default 
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occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument is used instead of the change 
in the amount of expected credit losses 

Based on the above process, the Company categorizes its loans into three stages as 
described below: For non-impaired financial assets 

Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not 
experienced a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial 
recognition. A 12-month ECL provision is made for stage 1 financial 
assets. In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, the 
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset 
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the 
financial asset as at the date of initial recognition. 
Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have 
experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 
The Company recognizes lifetime ECL for stage 2 financial assets. In 
subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial 
instrumnent improves such that there is no longera significant increase 
in credit risk since initial recognition, then entities shall revert to 
recognizing 12 months ECL provision. 
For impaired financial assets: Financial assets are classified as stage 3 
when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or 
more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a 
negative impact on the estimated future cash flows of a loan or a 
portfolio of loans. The Company recognizes lifetime ECL for impaired 
financial assets. 

The mechanics of the ECL calculations.are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows: 

o Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. The Company uses historical information where available to determine PD. For this 
purpose the probability over a period of one year of the outstanding loan portfolio for the past few years is taken for Gold loan portfolio taking slippage to NPA, loans written off and auction closure as defaulting events. For microfinance and loan against property slippage to NPA and written off are taken as defaulting events. o Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, considering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments. The company uses historical informnation where available to estimate its EAD. By observing the historical data 
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and due to the bullet payment scheme of gold loans, EAD for gold loan 

portfolio is taken as 100% and for micro finance based on the amount 

of loan outstanding at the time of default to the actual disbursed 
amount of loan over the last few years. For Loan Against Property, 

based on the Management's assessment on the recoverability, 100% 

provision is created for the outstanding defaulted balance at Stage 3. 

o Loss Given Default (LGD) � The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the 

loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based 

on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those 

that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realization 

of any collateral. For Gold Loans reported in Fraud Monitoring Returns, 
100% provision is created for Stage 3. For Loan Against Property, 
100% provision is created based on Management's assessment on 

recoverability. 

As required by RBI Circular reference no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No. 
109/22.10.106/ FY 2019-20 dated March 13, 2020; where impairment allowance under 

Ind AS 109 is lower than the provisioning required as per extant prudential norms on 
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) including 
borrower/beneficiary wise classification, provisioning for standard as well as 
restructured assets, NPA ageing, etc, the Company shall appropriate the difference from 
their net profit or loss after tax to a separate »Impairment Reserve'. 
Upgradation of accounts classified as Stage 3/Non-performing assets (NPA) - The 
Company upgrades loan accounts classified as Stage 3/ NPA to standard' asset category 
only if the entire arrears of interest, principal and other amount are paid by the borrower 
and there is no change in the accounting policy followed by the Company in this regard. 
With regard to upgradation of accounts classified as NPA due to restructuring, the 
instructions as specified for such cases as per the said RBI guidelines shall continue to be 
applicable. 

Forward looking information 

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic 
developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, 
the Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, 
unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with 
the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data. While the 
internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such 
relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect 
such macro-economic trends reasonably. 
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To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company uses collateral, where 
possible. Collateral comes in various forms, and mainly represents Gold jewellery in 
respect of Gold loans financed by the company. However, the fair value of collateral 
affects the calculation of ECL. The collateral is majorly the property for which the loan is 
given. The fair value of the same is based on data provided byy third party or management 
judgements. 

Loans are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of 
recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower 
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to 
repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans 
are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Where the expected credit loss assessed by the company based on the above metrics are 
lower that the provision required under the RBI norms, an overlay is added to the 
provision methodology to ensure that the expected credit loss ascertained by the 
company is always not lower than the minimum regulatory provision required under RBI 
normS 

Determination of Fair Value of Financial instruments 

The company measurers certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet 
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
The fair value measurement is based on the perception that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place either -

a. In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 
b. In the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. The fair value measuremnent of a non financial asset takes into account a market participants ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maxinmising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs 
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The financial instruments are classified based on hierarchy of valuation techniques, as 
summarised below -

Level I - This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference 
to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 - This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using 
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. price) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3 - This level includes financial assets and liabilities measured using 
inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a 
valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by 
prices from observable current market transactions in the same 

instrument nor are they based on available market data. 

C. Retirement and Other Employee Benefits 

1. Short-term Employee Benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are those that are expected to be settled wholly within 
twelve months of the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render 
the related services. These include salaries, wages, performance incentives, exX-gratia, 
and paid absences such as earned leave. The cost of such benefits is recognized as an 
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders 
the service. 

2. Long-term Employee Benefits 

a. Defined Contribution Plans 

The Company contributes to statutory post-employment benefit schemes including the 
Employees' Provident Fund and Employees' State Insurance schemes, which are defined 
contribution plans governed by applicable Indian laws. The Company's contribution to 
these plans is recognized as an expense in the period in which the employee renders the 
related service. The Company has no further obligation beyond its monthly 
contributions. 

b. Defined Benefit Plans 

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in line with the provisions of The 
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The gratuity liability is payable to employees on 
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separation from service, upon death, or retirement, after completing a specified number 
of years of service. 

The liability for gratuity is determined annually on the basis of actuarial valuation using 
the Projected Unit Credit Method, carried out by an independent actuary. The present 
value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by discounting estimated future cash 
outilowS using yields on government bonds that have terms approximating the terms of 
the related obligation at the reporting date. 

C. Meassurement and Recognition 

The net interest cost is determined by applying the discount rate to the net 
defined benefit liability or asset. 
Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan 
assets (excluding net interest), are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 
(0CI) and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 
Actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include discount rates, future salary 
increases, attrition rates, and mortality rates. These assumptions are reviewed 
annually and are sensitive to future changes. 
The defined benefit obligations recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the 
present value of the defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of plan 
assets. 

D. Finance cost 

Finance costs represents Interest expense recognized by applying the Effective Interest 
Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial other than financial liabilities 
classified as FVTPL. 

The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed at the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability to the 
gross carrying amount of the amortized cost of a financial liability, by considering all the 
contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flovws. 

Finance cost Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral 
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. 

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognized in 
interest expense with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the 
financial liability. Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as 
part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortised over the expected life 
using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to 
advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs, rating fee etc., provided these 
are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability. 

E. Leases 
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The Company evaluates each contractual arrangement to assess whether it contains a lease as per the definition in Ind AS 116- Leases, A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

The Company as a Lessee 

The Company recognizes a lease liability and a corresponding right-of-use (ROU) asset for all lease arrangements, except for Short-term leases, i.e., leases with a term of 12 
months or less, and leases of low-value assets (such as small office equipment),for 
which the Company has opted to apply the recognition exemption permitted under Ind 
AS 116. Lease payments for such arrangements are recognized as an expense on a 
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term, if more 
representative of the pattern of the lessee's benefit. The related payments are presented 
under cash flows from operating activities. 

For all other leases: 

Lease Liability is initially measured at the present value of future lease 
payments, discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate. The 
lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost, reduced by lease 
payments made, and remeasured to reflect changes in lease terms, modifications, 
or revised fixed payments as per Ind AS 116. 

Right-of-Use Asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability plus 
any initial direct costs. Subsequently, the ROU asset is carried at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset's useful life or the lease term, 
unless ownership of the underlying asset transfers to the Company by the end of 
the lease term. 

The Company as a Lessor 

Where the Company is a lessor, leases are classified as: 

Finance Leases, if substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of 
the leased asset are transferred to the lessee. In such cases, the leased asset is 
derecognized, and a receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the net 
investment in the lease. 

Operating Leases, if the risks and rewards remain with the Company. Income 
from operating leases is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis, if it better 
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represents the pattern in which benefit from the use of the leased asset is 
diminished. 

E. Other income and expenses 
All other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur. 

G. Taxes 

Current Tax 

Current tax is the amount of in come taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a 
period. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in 
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable 
tax laws. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting date in India where the 
Company operates and generates taxable income. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised 
outside profit or loss, i.e., either in other comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax 
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other 

comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred 
income tax is determined using tax rates and lavws that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related 
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses, 
and unused tax credits if it is probable that future taxable amounts will arise to utilise 
those temporary differen ces and losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and they 
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities that intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis 
or realise their tax assets and liabiliti es simultaneously. Deferred tax relating to items 
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, i.e., either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to 
the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 
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Goods and services tax /value-added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on 
incurring expenses 

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the goods and services tax/value-added taxes 
paid, except: 

i. 

ii. 

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable 
trom the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognized as part 
of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as 
applicable. 

When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included, 
the net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority 
is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 

H. Foreign currency transaction 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the 
Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the 
average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the 
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the 
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non 
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange 
differences are recognised in profit or loss. 

I. Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank, cash in hand, cheque to be realized and bank deposits having a maturity of less than three months from the date of deposit. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any, as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

J. Property Plant and Equipment 

The Company has elected to choose the cost model as its accounting policy and continue with the carrying value of assets as deemed cost of all its property, plant and equipment on transition date to IndAS. 
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The property plant and equipment are the assets held for the use in the supply of 
Services. Property, plant and equipment's are stated in the balance sheet at cost (net of 
duty/taxX credit availed) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, where applicable. 

The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any other 
ncidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
Condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, 
plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, 
if appropriate. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the 
amortization period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in 
accounting estimates. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are 

added to its gross value only if it in creases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond 
its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. 
Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred. 

K. Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided using written down value method as per the Useful life provided 
in the Schedule II of The Companies Act, 2013. 

Computers and accessories 

Particulars 

Plant and machinery 

Building 

Car 

Furniture and fittings 

Electrical fittings 

Electronic equipment 

Weighing machine 

Software and licenses 

Useful life as per 
Companies Act (in years) 

3 

15 

60 

10 

10 

15 

15 

3 

Useful life estimated by 
the Company (in years) 

3 

15 

60 

8 

10 

10 

15 

15 

3 



Video surveillance 

equipment 

Air conditioner 

L. Intangible Assets 

M. 

15 

10 

Related Party 

15 

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it 
1S probatble that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will 
Tiow to the Company. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit and loss. Amortisation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss from / upto the date of acquisition/sale. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Intangible assets comprising of software are amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 years, unless it has a shorter useful life. 

10 

The Company's intangible assets consist of computer software with definite life. Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

All related party transactions which were entered into during the year were on an arm's length basis and generally in the ordinary course of business under the Act. The Company has a policy on related party transactions which has been approved by the Board in their meeting held on 27 February, 2025. All the transactions which identified as related party transactions are approved by the Audit Committee, Board, 



of Directors/ members at the General Meeting as mav be deemed necessary ana as 
stipulated in the policy. 
Details of transactions entered into with the related party is disclosed in Note (4) of 
Accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

N. Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or 
Constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value 

of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of provision by discounting the 
Expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability. 
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net 
of any reimbursement. As at reporting date, the Company does not have any such 
provisions where the effect of time value of money is material." 

0. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence 
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events beyond the control of the Company. It may also arise in cases where a present 
obligation is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation. Additionally, a contingent liability may arise in rare 
cases where a liability cannot be recognized due to its inability to be measured reliably. 
The Company does not recognize contingent liabilities but discloses them in the financial 
statements when applicable. 

P. 

Contingent Liabilities 

Q. 

Contingent Assets 

A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. The Company does not have any contingent assets to disclose in the financial statements. 

Earnings Per Share 

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and applicable taxes) by the 



weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, únless issued at a later date. In Computing diluted EPS, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and either reduce earnings per share or increase loss per share are considered. 

R. 

The Company prepares its Cash Flow Statement using the indirect method, whereby the 
net profit or loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, tax, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of 

income or expense related to investing or financing cash flows. 

S 

Cash Flow 

T. 

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
The Company accounts for expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as a charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

The carrying amount of non-financial assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Impairment testing is carried out based on both internal and external factors. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognized where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value in use. When assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and riskS specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market transactions are considered, if available. If no such transactions are identified, an appropriate valuation model is applied. 
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Ifan impairment loss is recognized, the revised carrying amount of the asset is 
depreciated over its remaining useful life. The impairment loss is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 
case the impairment loss is recognized as a revaluation decrease. 

5. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Provisions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires 

management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported 

amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, and related disclosures, including 

contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying 

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods 

affected. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of 

current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 

result in outcomes requiring material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets or 

liabilities in future periods. 

The following outlines the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical 

judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 

amounts recognized in the financial statements: 

(a) Business Model Assessment 

The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on the results of the 

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test and the business model test. The 

Company determines the businesS model at a level that reflects how groups of financial 

assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment 

involves judgment, considering all relevant evidence, including how the performance of 

the assets is evaluated, the risks that affect their performance, and how these risks are 

managed. Additionally, how asset managers are compensated is also a key 

consideration. The Company continuously monitors financial assets measured at 

amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, including those 

derecognized prior to maturity, to understand the reasons for disposal and assess 

whether these reasons align with the business model for which the asset was held. This 

ongoing monitoring helps the Company assess whether its business model for managing 

financial assets remains appropriate or whether a change in the business model, and 

consequently a change in asset classification, is required. 
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(b) Defined Employee Benefit Assets and Liabilities 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity 
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. These valuations involve making 
several assumptions, including the discount rate, future salary increases, and mortality 
rates. Given the complexities of the valuation and the long-term nature of defined 
benefit obligations, the resulting estimates are highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All such assumptions are reviewed annually to ensure they remain 
appropriate, and any changes may have a significant impact on the financial statements. 

(c) Fair Value Measurement 

In instances where the fair values of financial assets and liabilities recorded on the 
balance sheet cannot be derived from quoted prices in active markets, the Company 
employs various valuation techniques to determine fair value. Where possible, these 
techniques incorporate observable market data; however, in situations where such data 
is unavailable, a degree of judgment is required. Inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk, 
and volatility are taken into account in determining fair value. Changes in the 
assumptions regarding these factors could have a significant impact on the reported fair 
value of financial instruments. 

(d) Impairment of Loans Portfolio 

The assessment of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires 
judgment, particularly with regard to the estimation of the amount and timing of future 
cash flows, as well as the value of collateral when determining impairment. Moreover, 
the evaluation of a significant increase in credit risk is subject to considerable judgment, 
influenced by multiple factors that can result in varying levels of impairment. The 
Company continually reviews and updates its impairment models to reflect actual loss 
experience and adjusts these models as necessary to ensure that the provisions for 
impairment are in line with current conditions. 

(e) Contingent Liabilities and Provisions (0ther than Impairment of Loan 
Portfolio) 

Provisions and liabilities are recognized when it becomes probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle an obligation and the amount of such an outflow can 
be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and the quantification of the liability 
require the application of judgment based on the facts and circumstances existing at the 
time. These provisions are subject to regular review and may be adjusted to reflect any 
changes in the underlying facts or circumstances. 



() Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method 

The Company employs the EIR method to recognize interest income and expense in 
such a way thatit reflects the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the 

expected life of loans or other financial instruments. This methodology involves 
significant judgment regarding the expected behavior of financial instruments over 
time, including assumptions about prepayments, penalty interest, changes in base rates, 
and other fees integral to the instruments. The complexities of these assumptions 
require careful evaluation, as changes can impact the overall measurement of financial 
income and expense. 

(g) Determination of Lease Term 

As per Ind AS 116 "Leases," the Company is required to determine the lease term, which 
includes the non-cancellable period of the lease, along with any options to extend or 
terminate the lease if the use of such options is deemed reasonably certain. The 
determination of the lease term is made on a lease-by-lease basis, requiring the 
Company to assess the likelihood of exercising any options to extend or terminate the 

lease. In making this assessment, the Company considers factors such as the significance 
of leasehold improvements, costs asso ciated with lease termination, and the importance 
of the underlying asset to the Company's operations, including considerations of 
location and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term is reassessed 

periodically to reflect changes in the economic environment and operating 
circumstan ces. 
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